
AGENDA 
Meeting #6 

Thursday, June 25, 2020 
Join Zoom Meeting 

https://zoom.us/j/92138152461?pwd=ejEwbFBHS0FBWlJUUWF6UUtyeEEvUT09 

Meeting ID: 921 3815 2461 
Password: 212872 

Thursday, June 25, 2020 --  4:00 p.m. 

Mission 
  Empowering immigrants and others to become 
self-sufficient,  productive and civically engaged. 

https://zoom.us/j/92138152461?pwd=ejEwbFBHS0FBWlJUUWF6UUtyeEEvUT09


 
 

Hispanic Unity of Florida 
Board of Directors Meeting 

AGENDA 
Thursday, June 25, 2020  

 
Join Zoom Meeting 

https://zoom.us/j/92138152461?pwd=ejEwbFBHS0FBWlJUUWF6UUtyeEEvUT09 
Meeting ID: 921 3815 2461 

Password: 212872 
 

We will start the meeting promptly at 4pm  
 
1. 4:00pm Call to Order/ Roll Call     Lucia Rodriguez & Felina Furer 
 
2. 4:05 Presentations      Lucia Rodriguez  Information  

• Chair Welcome     
 
3. 4:10 2019 Financials Audit – John Guerrero, Andrew Fierman, CPA   Action  

• Andrew S. Fierman, CPA/Partner Caballero Fierman Llerena + Garcia, LLP  Sent separately  
 

4. 4:40 Finance Committee   Emma Pfister & Virginia Cielo 
• Sewage Installation        Action Sent separately    

 
5. 4:50 Planned Giving   Dan Herz & Shani Wilson  

  Presentation by two Planned Giving Experts  
• Review & Vote on Committee Recommendations   Action  pg. 1-6  

 
6. 5:30 Governance Committee  Steve Sampier   

• Extend the Executive Committee Resolution through August 2020  Action     
• Prospective Board Member, Jorge de Apodaca (Board Member Emeritus)  Action  pg.7-10 

 
7. 5:40 Consent Agenda   Action         Lucia Rodriguez  

Consent agenda items are items that may not need individual discussion and may be voted as one item.  
Any Board member wishing to discuss an item may move to have it considered individually. 

       
i. Board Minutes May 2020        pg. 11-13  
ii. Finance Committee Minutes, May 2020       pg. 14-16 
iii. Audit Committee Minutes, June 2020      Sent separately   
iv. April 2020 Financials        Sent separately  
v. The Jim Moran Foundation Monthly Report as of April 2020  Sent separately 
vi. Finance Committee Meeting Minutes, June 2020    Sent separately  
vii. Governance Committee, June 2020 Minutes      pg.  17-18     
viii. Marketing Committee, June 2020 Minutes      pg. 19-20   
ix. Public Policy & Advocacy, June 2020 Minutes      pg. 21-22      
x. Updated HUF 2020 Public Policy & Advocacy Platform    Attached to Board Pkg PDF  
xi. Review by Executive Committee of the Sign-On letter for National Latino Community Asset 

Builders/Latino Economic Agenda- Approval to sign-on               Attached to Board Pkg PDF 
  

8. 5:45 pm Executive Session          
 

9. 6:00pm  Adjourn  
 

18 Active Board members / 10 required for quorum and vote 
 
 
 
 

 
 

https://zoom.us/j/92138152461?pwd=ejEwbFBHS0FBWlJUUWF6UUtyeEEvUT09


 
 
 
 

Hispanic Unity of Florida 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ATTENDANCE MATRIX  

BOARD  
MEMBER 

June 
2019 

July  
2019 

Aug 
2019 

Sept 
2019 

Oct 
2019 

 Nov 
2019 

Dec 
2019  

Jan 
2020 

Feb 
2020 

Mar 
2020 

Apr 
2020 

May 
2020 

ABBATE, Anthony 
(Tony) 

             R
etreat R

escheduled  

 
             N

o M
eeting / Sum

m
er Break  

              N
o M

eeting / Sum
m

er Break 

E P P P P P P P E 

ALVAREZ, Maritza         P 

BELLO, Eduardo P P P P P P P P P 

CARDOZO, Carolina P P P(T) P P P P P P 

CUSHING, Giselle  P P E P P E P P P 

FRANCO, Lesli P P P P E P P E P 

GOMEZ, Willy  P P P P P P E P P 

GUERRERO, John P P P P P P P P P 

HERZ, Dan P P P P P P P P P 

KARLEN, Scott P E P P E P P P P 

PARADOWSKI, 
Christina 

P P P P P P P P P 

PENA, Deborah P P P P E A P P P 

PFISTER, Emma P P P P P P P P P 

RODRIGUEZ, Lucia  P P E P P P P P P 

SAMPIER, Steve P P P P P P P P P 

SCHEVIS, Daniel  P P P E P P P P P 
STONE, Angie  P P E E P P P P P 
TATELBAUM, Chuck                           P P P P P E P P P 
Total Board Members 20 19 19 19 18 18 18   

Present:  P /  
T= Telephone 

19 17 16 17 14 14 16 17 18 

Excused:  E 1 2 3 2 4 3 2 1 1 
Absent: A 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 
Board Members 
Participating   

95% 90% 84% 90% 78% 78%  89% 89% 88% 

Board Members 
Present at the Meeting  

90% 90% 79% 90% 78% 78% 
 

89% 
Phone 

94% 
Zoom  

88%  
Zoom 



 
 

Recommendations to the Board of Directors  
from HUF’s Planned Giving Ad Hoc Committee 

Committee Chair: Dan Herz      

Committee Members: Eduardo Bello, Maria Elena Ferrer and Scott Karlen 

Committee Purpose: To create a plan and recommendations for a planned giving program for 
HUF. 
___________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Table of Contents 

 
1. Case Statement 

2. Legacy Gift Policy 

3. Planned Gift Intent/Instructions Form 

4. Communications Plan 

a. In light of the impact of COVID-19, committee recommends delaying 

communications to annual campaign, Circle of Friends, and major donors until a 

more suitable time. 

 

 

Ensure your legacy by empowering a New Generation of Americans. 

1



 

 
Ensuring HUF’s Future 

 
 
We are better as people and as a country, when we welcome our neighbors, 

care for each other, and help those in need.  
We are better when we embrace our differences. 

 
 
Families around the world move to America in search of freedom and opportunity, to make life 
better for themselves and their children.  For 38 years, Hispanic Unity of Florida (HUF) has 
welcomed newcomers to our country and guided them on their often difficult – but always hopeful 
– life-long process of learning what it means to be an American and achieving their American 
dream; this is at the heart of our work.  
 
We have connected more than 420,000 children, youth & adults from 30+ countries to learn 
English, become contributing US citizens, and find better jobs—all in one place. As their equal 
partners, we work with families to identify factors that challenge their overall wellbeing; we’re 
guiding them to solve problems, access new resources, and sharpen their existing skills. We are 
their coaches providing the tools and resources to help them on their journey to their American 
dream. 
 
Annual gifts are important to ensuring the operation of HUF’s important programs and services; 
however, our community requires more in order to ensure our future. When you make a planned 
gift to HUF, you make clear that you believe in our mission and want to see it continue for 
generations to come. You make it known that you wish to create a charitable legacy and make an 
enduring statement about your priorities. 

 
We ask you to make a legacy gift to Hispanic Unity of Florida.  Share our dream - an 
inclusive & equitable community of successful children, strong families, and civically engaged 
individuals. Your gift will ensure that HUF continues to be a resource to South Floridians of all 
ages to achieve their American dream. 
 
  

Ensure your legacy by empowering a  
New Generation of Americans. 

Please call: Shani Wilson at (954) 342-0430  

 
 

 
2



 
 

Ensure your legacy by empowering a New Generation of Americans. 
Please call: Shani Wilson at (954) 342-0430 

Hispanic Unity of Florida – Legacy Gift Policy 

Hispanic Unity of Florida solicits and accepts gifts for purposes that will help the 
organization further and fulfill its mission. 

Hispanic Unity of Florida urges all prospective donors to seek the assistance of personal 
legal and financial advisors in matters relating to their gifts, including the resulting tax and 
estate-planning consequences. 

The following policies and guidelines govern acceptance of gifts made to Hispanic Unity 
of Florida for the benefit of any of its operations, programs, or services. 

Use of Legal Counsel 

Hispanic Unity of Florida will seek the advice of legal counsel in matters relating to 
acceptance of gifts when appropriate. Review by counsel is recommended for: 

 Gifts of securities that are subject to restrictions or buy-sell agreements 
 Documents naming Hispanic Unity of Florida to act in any fiduciary capacity 
 Gifts requiring Hispanic Unity of Florida to assume financial or other obligations 
 Transactions with potential conflicts of interest 
 Gifts of property which may be subject to environmental or other regulatory 

restrictions 

Restrictions on Gifts 

Hispanic Unity of Florida will not accept gifts that: 

 Would result in Hispanic Unity of Florida violating its corporate charter 
 Would result in Hispanic Unity of Florida losing its status as an IRS 501 (c)(3) not-

for-profit organization, or are too difficult or too expensive to administer in relation 
to their value 

 Would result in any unacceptable consequences for Hispanic Unity of Florida, or 
are for purposes outside Hispanic Unity of Florida’s mission. 

3



Hispanic Unity of Florida, 5840 Johnson Street, Hollywood, FL 33021 | Phone – (954) 342-0430 | Fax – (954) 964-8646  

Planned Gift Instructions 
Thank you for informing Hispanic Unity of Florida (HUF) of your planned gift intentions. 

This gift intention form is to be used for recordkeeping purposes only and does not constitute a 
realized gift or pledge based on its potential revocability, and is not considered a legally binding 
obligation. Information contained in this document will remain confidential. If you have any 
questions regarding its completion or including HUF in your estate, please contact us at (954) 

342-0430. 

Full Name: 

Date of Birth: 

Phone Number: 

Mailing Address: 

Email Address: 

Hispanic Unity of Florida is named as a beneficiary on the following planned gift instrument(s): 
Please check all that apply. 
□ In my will or
□ As a provision in my/our

revocable living trust, which
stipulates

□ $__________from my estate will be distributed to HUF
□ ___________% of my estate will be distributed to HUF
□ ___________shares of stocks/bonds/mutual funds.

Name of issuer: ___________________________________________
□ In my insurance plan: □ Whole Life

□ Term
Current value of intended distribution to HUF $ 
Cash value of insurance gift $ 

□ Through my retirement plan Dollar amount or % to be distributed: 
□ Through my life-income plan Type/Vehicle: Managing Trustee: 

□ I prefer not to disclose any further information regarding the value of the intended gift.

If this gift is for something other than unrestricted purposes (ex. Annual campaign), please specify your 
designation: 
______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
(Ex. education (Unity 4Kids and/or Unity 4Teens), civic engagement program, economic development program) 

Your name will be listed in written publications as a contributor to Hispanic Unity of Florida. No further information 
or estimated planned gift amount will be disclosed. 
Please list my name as follows: ___________________________________________________________ 

□ I prefer to remain anonymous

Should my bequest provision to Hispanic Unity of Florida change, I agree to notify Hispanic Unity of Florida. 

Signature Date 

Please attach the appropriate documentation and return this form to Shani Wilson at swilson@hispanicunity.org. 
Ensure your legacy by empowering a New Generation of Americans. 

4



TBD* = When HUF resumes operations - post-COVID-19 response - and planned giving is an appropriate 
priority. We want to avoid messaging that is not timely, insensitive, or inappropriate.  
TBD** = Rescheduled date for 06/09/20 Board of Directors Meeting. 

Communications Plan for HUF Planned Giving Strategy 

When Marketing Tasks 
05/29/20  Update website
TBD*  Incorporate into social media calendar
05/29/20  Update printed materials to include info about planned giving

o Separate insert or boilerplate for Circle of Friends brochure

When Board Meeting Presentation on Planned Giving 
06/09/20 
TBD** 

Nydia Menendez, attorney specializing in estate planning & HUF board member 
emeritus - to present on planned giving, including: 

 What is planned giving?
 Why is planned giving important?
 How can I encourage others to make a legacy gift?

When Email Communications 
 Message

Dear [first name], 

We’re writing to you because we believe you care about ensuring the future 
of Hispanic Unity of Florida (HUF). 

Families around the world move to America in search of freedom and opportunity, 
to make life better for themselves and their children.  For 38 years, Hispanic Unity 
of Florida (HUF) has welcomed newcomers to our country and guided them on 
their often difficult – but always hopeful – life-long process of learning what it 
means to be an American and achieving their American dream; this is at the heart 
of our work.  

We have connected more than 420,000 children, youth & adults from 30+ 
countries to learn English, become contributing US citizens, and find better jobs—
all in one place. As their equal partners, we work with families to identify factors 
that challenge their overall wellbeing; we’re guiding them to solve problems, 
access new resources, and sharpen their existing skills. We are their coaches 
providing the tools and resources to help them on their journey to their American 
dream. 

Your annual gifts are important to ensuring the operation of HUF’s important 
programs and services; however, our community requires more in order to ensure 
our future. When you make a planned gift to HUF, you make clear that you believe 
in our mission and want to see it continue for generations to come. You make it 
known that you wish to create a charitable legacy and make an enduring 
statement about your priorities. 

We ask you to make a legacy gift to Hispanic Unity of Florida.  Share our 
dream - an inclusive & equitable community of successful children, strong families, 

5



TBD* = When HUF resumes operations - post-COVID-19 response - and planned giving is an appropriate 
priority. We want to avoid messaging that is not timely, insensitive, or inappropriate.  
TBD** = Rescheduled date for 06/09/20 Board of Directors Meeting. 

and civically engaged individuals. Your legacy gift will ensure that HUF continues 
to be a resource to South Floridians of all ages to achieve their American dream. 

Ensure your legacy by empowering a New Generation of Americans; please call: 
Shani Wilson at (954) 342-0430. 

Warmest regards, 
[Sender] 

 Recipient group (Sender)
06/10/20 
TBD** 

 Board of Directors (Development Director and Board Chair)

TBD*  Annual Campaign (Development Director)
TBD*  Circle of Friends (Development Director)
TBD*  Major Donors (President/CEO)

6



Hispanic Unity of Florida: Board of Directors Contact Introduction 

Please complete the following requests for information per the potential Board of Director candidate. 

First Name  

 

Last Name  

 

Primary Affiliation/Organization  

 

Additional Affiliation(s)/Organization(s)  

 

Mailing Address  

 

City, State and Zip Code  

 

Email Address  

 

Phone Number  

 

Professional Background  

o For-profit Organization  

o Non-profit Organization  

o Government (Local, State)  

o Government (Federal, Foreign)  

7



o Other:  

Age  

 

Gender  

 

Previous HUF Relationship  

o Current or Previous Volunteer  

o Current or Previous Donor  

o Current or Previous Committee Member  

o HUF Event Attendee  

o HUF Program Client  

o Other:  

Expertise/Special Skills  

o Accounting/financial  

o Business/governance  

o Strategic planning  

o Prior audit experience  

o Prior executive committee experience  

o Prior governance/nominating experience  

o Non-profit organizations  

o Banking/Financial Services  

o Information Technology  

o Legal/compliance  

o Risk management  

o Human Resources  

8



o Other:  

Other board service/board training  

 

Assessment of level of interest in serving  

 1 2 3 4 5  

Very Interested      Not Interested at All 

Available Time and Commitment to serve  

How much time/commitment are you able to share with HUF? Please consider travel & current 
commitments. 

 1 2 3 4 5  

High Level of Time/Commitment      Low Level of Time/Commitment 

Assessment Fundraising Potential  

Assessment of giving/getting potential 

 1 2 3 4 5  

High Level of Fundraising      Low Level of Fundraising 

Referral Source  

First and Last Name of Person referring potential candidate 

 

Additional Information  

9



 

Submit  

Never submit passwords through Google Forms. 

Powered by  

Google Forms 

 

This content is neither created nor endorsed by Google.  
Report Abuse - Terms of Service - Additional Terms 

Screen reader support enabled.  

 

10

https://www.google.com/forms/about/?utm_source=product&utm_medium=forms_logo&utm_campaign=forms
https://www.google.com/forms/about/?utm_source=product&utm_medium=forms_logo&utm_campaign=forms
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLSe1SkW8hW2JddTkU2WfDUiQnv0Tv6eVooXp14hV-oJOcuNG_w/reportabuse?source=https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLSe1SkW8hW2JddTkU2WfDUiQnv0Tv6eVooXp14hV-oJOcuNG_w/viewform
http://www.google.com/accounts/TOS
http://www.google.com/google-d-s/terms.html


 
 

Hispanic Unity of Florida 
Board of Directors Meeting 

Zoom Meeting Minutes 
May 26, 2020  

 
 
Call to Order/ Roll Call    
At 4:00pm 
 
Presentations      
 

 Lucia Rodriguez called the meeting to order and welcomed everyone.  
 She reviewed Zoom Tips.  
 Lucia welcomed Maritza Alvarez, HUF’s newest board member. Lucia shared some 

background on Maritza. Maritza shared her enthusiasm and support for HUF’s mission.  
 Lucia introduced Otto Valenzuela, 2020/2021 HUF Fellow, Public Policy & Advocacy. Lucia 

provided his background and what his new position will entail.   
 
COVID 19: Response & Recovery—Presented by Josie Bacallao  
Respond & Recovery. Josie shared a document from the Nonprofit Finance Fund which gives a framework for 
nonprofits from the responding to recovery to resiliency phases.  Josie thanked the board for being so 
supportive, responsive and for providing valuable guidance. HUF cash flow looks strong throughout the 
summer. We have had an increase of monies from Covid19 funding. Providing long term stability is the recent 
five (5) year award from CSC which increases HUF’s funding from six to seven schools. The total award grows 
HUF’s revenues. The per student funding also increased. The closure of the Unity4Kids has worsened the 
anticipated annual deficit for this program. We have modeled no revenues from this program for the remainder 
of the year (even after we reopen.) Our naturalization application and other legal services have ceased also 
impacting us negatively with client fees. So, while some revenues are down, so too are HUF’s expenses. Many 
of our classroom programs are now online. Gulfstream will not reopen until BCPS reopens all their schools and 
even then, it is uncertain if we will be allowed to return to that facility. We are exploring alternatives. We are 
doing budget planning, safety preparedness and program planning. In the non-profit world we cannot get 
further than a quarter at a time in planning as changes are happening so quickly. Right now, in terms of 
reopening we are looking at program by program, support staff needs, changes that need to be made at 
workplace and what policies must be created. We have a target date of late June or early July to provide very 
limited, by appointment-only client services in the 5811 (ESOL) building. Administrative staff that must, or 
wants to work at HUF, will be carefully scheduled to ensure HUF has appropriate levels of protection and 
social distancing.  

       
Josie shared the topline of the recent Employee Survey.  It appears that a large portion of the team is worried 
about sustainability of the organization and of course, overall anxiety is high. Staff feel very confident in 
management and would like weekly communication. A second survey will be going out to the team but will be 
going more in-depth about their work preferences and needs.   

 
Is anyone doing a survey of what the community needs are? Lucia asked. Josie shared that we are in constant 
contact with clients daily. Main concern is money for rent and utilities. Employment needs are second. John 
Guerrero asked about direct help for our existing clients, Josie responded we are helping those. Are we having 
a new group of people who have never been to HUF asking for assistance? Felipe Pinzon shared we are 
helping those not in currently enrolled in HUF’s programs. They are becoming our new clients Their needs 
include food, rent and utilities assistance. We now also have our own team members asking for assistance as 
their spouses have lost their jobs. We have our own emergency assistance fund to help staff (and are also able 
to tap The Jim Moran Foundation Covid-19 Emergency funds intended for both HUF clients and staff. 
 
Willy Gomez shared he has looked at data, Hospitality, Food and Tourism sector were hurt the hardest. He 
asked if we track what industry are clients are working in? Josie shared we know our clients are in those 

11



industries and are hurting. This will be a long recovery; the highest unemployment rate is among 
Hispanic/Immigrants nationally.   
 
Scott Karlen asked if staff is asking for money for bills or anything specific? Felipe shared yes, the staffers are 
asking for money to pay bills – rent and mortgage payments.  
             
Finance Committee—Presented by John Guerrero (for Emma Pfister) & Virginia Cielo 
John shared the board will review the April financials in June.  
 
Q1 Financials Jan-March 2020. These financials have not been fully vetted at the committee level, but the 
committee wanted to share with the board as the work continues.  

 
Cash Flow as of April 30, 2020. The take-away is that our cash position has increased along with our liquidity. 
It will continue rising in May due to PPP loan money coming in. We are continuing to have funding from our 
funders, so we do not anticipate any dark clouds soon. Our actuals are $626k+ which is double of which was 
projected for April, the latter is due to the additional LOC dollars and new COVID19 funding. Chuck Tatelbaum 
asked if we are working on getting the PPP money as loan or debt forgiven? Most will be loan given Emma 
Pfister shared due to funder restrictions and payroll. There is not a prepaid loan penalty payment, so we may 
give some back verse using in full.  (Update: Since the extension of the PPP from 8 to 24 weeks, HUF will 
most likely use the bulk of the funds and they will be forgivable.)   

 
Virginia Cielo reviewed the March 2020 financial highlights. Q1 came in very close to projected budget as we 
were over in a positive.   

 
2020 Revenue Projections--Presented by Felipe Pinzon & Shani Wilson.  
We have budgeted $2.2 million dollars in unsecured funding. We did projections by funder we have secured 
$870k to date. We have applied for over $1million in grants that we hope to be approved. There are three 
different scenarios, best, moderate and worst. Shani shared we have $170k in pitches still to secure (out of our 
original $575K budget goal.) We are optimistic and in constant communication with our existing funders while 
pitching new ones.   

 
Covid-19 Funding to Date: Felipe shared over last few months we have filed for 25 grants. We have dollars for 
overall emergency client support, emergency assistance, technology and general expenses.  

 
Sewage Installation & Sign-On Letter. Virginia shared that we are still evaluating the situation. HUF received a 
letter from the City of Hollywood that we need to connect to new sewage lines by July. To get connected there 
is a $15k charge before a building permit will be issued. But HUF must spend an estimated $45-50K to 
collapse the septic and connect to the new system.   

 
Unity 4Kids Program. For as long as our program has been open this program has experienced a loss when 
fully loaded with shared expenses (which all other programs are able to absorb.) This is one program that 
cannot grow beyond its 20 children and cannot absorb our growing shared expenses as the agency has grown. 
We have explored and analyzed several options for the remainder of 2020 – from opening with 9 children to 
closing the program. The finance committee and staff recommend keeping the program and serving 9 children 
for the remainder of 2020 (per CDC guidelines.)  Many of our parents will not be able to pay; the latter grows 
our anticipated deficit for this year. The Finance Committee recommends that since this is a mission-based 
program that we continue to the end of 2020. We will use PPP funds to continue to pay the program staff. And 
will look at fundraising efforts specifically for this program. We are nationally accredited which is one of our 
selling points.  

 
Many parents have expressed interest in returning their child and the new school year would begin in 
September.  
 
Motion: John Guerrero motioned to keep U4K program to operational through the end of 2020 then review 
again when we review the 2021 budget. Chuck Tatelbaum provided the second. The motion passed 
unanimously.  

12



 
 
Dual Signature Policy. Virginia Cielo shared the policy and procedure for checks over $10k which is being 
proposed by the finance committee. The new policy will require dual signatures from HUF senior staff 
members. Willy Gomez was concerned about the issues this would create during Covid19 with couriers. Willy 
believes this is a burdensome process and does not find any value in it, since there are already several 
controls in place. John believes this could be done once HUF is back in the office. Chuck Tatelbaum believes 
conceptually with Willy however feels this is a good deterrent, therefore he supports this policy. Emma asked 
how many checks we are talking about, 10 was the answer for the year. HUF will determine if our banking 
institution requires a board resolution.    
 
Motion:  
John Guerrero motioned to accept the dual signature policy. Scott Karlen provide the second. The motion 
passed with Willy Gomez providing one dissenting vote.  
       
Governance Committee—Presented by Steve Sampier    
Extend the Executive Committee Resolution through June 2020. This allows the executive committee to make 
decisions on behalf of board during emergency. This would be the second extension.   

 
Motion:  
Steve Sampier motioned to accept the executive board resolution. Seconded by Willy Gomez.  

 
Annual Board Retreat: Update. There are strategic areas which will need to be discussed. We need to think 
about what things will look like in the future but do it in smaller meetings starting in August.   

 
Reminder that the New Board Meeting Date is Thursday, June 25th (2019 Financials). Lucia shared that 
Carolina Cardozo will be co-chair of the Public Policy and Advocacy Committee.   

    
Consent Agenda    
Motion: Steve Sampier motioned to accept the consent agenda. Willy Gomez provided the second. The 
motion passed.  
    
Executive Session 
The board members met in executive session along with Josie Bacallao, Virginia Cielo and Felipe Pinzon.  
Josie Bacallao reviewed the need for a new Recovery & Resiliency Director position reporting to Virginia Cielo. 
She highlighted the key job duties in the job description (sent in advance to the board). Josie indicated as this 
was considered a “highly compensated” position by the IRS, that the whole board must approve the addition of 
the position. Normally, all organization decisions (except for highly compensated individuals), are made by the 
CEO without the need of board approval.  The directors then engaged in a discussion and asked questions of 
the staff.  
 
Motion: Willy Gomez moved to add the position of Resiliency Director to the finance area and Scott Karlen 
provided the second. The motion passed unanimously.  
          

 
Adjourn  
6:02pm  

13



                                           Hispanic Unity of Florida 
                               Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 
                                                  May 21, 2020 

 
Attendance: 
3 members present –Mr. Nazur, Ms. Pena, and Mr. Guerrero 
4 members excused – Ms. Pfister, Mr. Bacher, Mr. Tatelbaum, and Mr. Karlen, 
8 non-voting members present – Ms. Rodriguez, Mr. McGuire, Ms. Cielo, Ms. Furer, Mr. Pinzon, Ms. Wilson, Ms. 
Bacallao, and Ms. Saavedra 
0 non-voting members excused –  
 

Mr. Nazur called the meeting to order at 8:33am. 
 
Financial Statements 
Mr. McGuire presented the Draft HUF Financial Statements as of December 31, 2019 emphasizing 
that although HUF came in under projections by $6K, there was still a profit of $12K and cash for the 
year was positive by $42K.   
 
Notable Restricted Donations                Notable Unrestricted Donations 
from December 2019:                 from December 2019: 

Chan Zuckerberg $125K 
Salah $100K 
Amex $50K 
Annie Casey $50K 
Florida Counts $25K 
South Broward 
Community Hosp 

 
$9K 

 
Receivable balances that were outstanding were predictable with $35K past due from IRS, and $21K 
past due from UnidosUS.  Both were paid in full—though several months late.   
Ms. Cielo added that there would be no vote to accept the 2019 financials as the auditors still have 
to finalize their work which will include prep for the 990.  They need to also be vetted by the audit 
committee.   
 

Hispanic Unity of Florida, Inc. 
Notes to Financials 

DECEMBER 31, 2019 
     
UNR Net Assets    
Reconciliation of UNR Net Assets:   
 1 Gain From Program Operations       743,132   
 2 Loss from Support Services       (730,884)  
         Inc(Dec) in UNR Net Assets  $     12,248  Operating Gain(Loss) 

     
The year to date gain of $12K is under budget by $6K over the projected yearly gain of $18K. 
1) Development exceeded the net projection by $57K.       
2) Programs fell behind the net projection by ($49K).       

JM Family $105K 
Ansin Fndn $15K 
3rd Federal $15K 
Miniaci  $10K 
Individuals $10K 

14



3) Admin fell behind yearly projections by ($14K.)   
     
Programs:    
Program's total contribution to date toward administrative and shared fixed costs to the agency totals 
$1,432K 
     
Development:     
The Development area contributed $312K toward administrative and shared fixed costs to the agency. 
     
Cash    
Year to date cash decreased by ($332K) as a result of the following activities: 
  $     (468,947) Inc/(Dec) in Net Assets   
           296,161  Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in net assets 

         (172,786) Net cash provided (consumed) by operating activities 
           (56,024) Investing Activities         
           270,564  Financing Activities   
  $         41,754  Inc/(Dec) in Cash   

         
March 2020 Financials 
The March 2020 financials were abbreviated in the hope of at least getting something out to the 
finance committee.  Finance assured the committee they would get the full March 2020 financials 
out by Tuesday May 26th via email and both the March and April financials will be completed and 
voted on at the June 18, 2020 finance committee meeting.   
 
Mr. McGuire and Mrs. Cielo committed to providing complete and timely financial statements every 
month moving forward.  
 
From the preliminary statements Mr. McGuire noted there was a large shift in long term pledged 
receivables due to payments and two large long term pledges shifting from Long term to current--
Moran $350K pledge and Florida Blue’s $112K pledge.  New awards include the following: 
 
Notable Restricted Donations from   Notable Unrestricted Donations 
 from January 2020 to March 2020:  January 2020 to March 2020: 

Moran $100K 
Citi $80K 
United Way $30K 
Unidos $8K 

 
Looking forward from March 31, Mr. McGuire and Ms. Cielo gave assurances that the Cash Flow is 
better than expected through April 30th, 2020 and liquidity is not a problem for now anyway.  Ms. 
Cielo did speak about a Hollywood-mandated sewer connection project for the two Johnson St. 
properties that the City of Hollywood is forcing HUF to undergo.  She is in the process of seeking bids 
and Ms. Bacallao would like to send a letter to the city asking for deferral.  Mr. Nazur agreed and 
suggested adding the board members names to the letter also.    
 
Ms. Cielo presented a new dual signature process which requires an internal control of two check 
signers on certain checks.   

HG Charitable $25K 
Memorial Health $20K 
TIAA Bank $8K 
FAU $3K 

15



 
 
 
MOTION:  
Mr. Guerrero moved to accept the new dual signature policy and Mr. Nazur seconded the motion. 
The motion passed. 
 
Program and Development Update:  
Mr. Pinzon mentioned that we have already secured 70% of the grants budget that was projected 
and budgeted for 2020. He presented best worst and most likely case scenarios for the remaining 
30%.  In the moderate case scenario, both restricted and unrestricted would exceed budget where 
the worst-case scenario would be slightly under budget.  He has gone through each HUF funder to 
see how best to secure dollars.  There has been regular funding and then Covid-19 funding, with 
many of those funds being unrestricted.  At this point with regard to Covid-19 funding over $400K 
have been awarded and there are also pending awards totaling around $400K.   
 
Ms. Wilson reviewed the unrestricted projections for the remainder of 2020. She also shared the 
best, worst and most likely scenarios. With the worst case missing budget by a relatively small 
amount.  
 
According to Ms. Wilson, our August 2020 E-Summit this year will be virtual and she is hoping to 
secure $65k through sponsorships. Net profit will be much larger due to a virtual event versus in-
person event. Shani asked committee to share sponsorship opportunity with their companies and 
networks.  
 
Executive Session 
Senior HUF team members met with the committee members and all other HUF staffers were 
excused. They shared a proposal to add a Resiliency Director to the finance team. Staff also provided 
a financial analysis of the incremental costs for this position (much of which will be covered by PPP 
funds.) Arnold Nazur moved to accept the proposed addition. John Guerrero provided the second. 
The motion passed.  

 

Next meeting June 18, 2020 

16



  

 

  Governance Committee Meeting Minutes 
June 5, 2020 

 
Present on Zoom:  
Steve Sampier, Tony Abbate, Barbara Grevior, Lucia 
Rodriguez, Angie Stone, Christina Paradowski, Jorge 
DeApodaca, Josie Bacallao and Felina Rosales-Furer 

Excused:  
Maria Elena Ferrer and Melida Akiti  
 

Next Steps/Action Items:  
1. Steve Sampier asked the committee to review the portal lists of board and committee 

members to gather ideas of filing positions for future. 
2. Angie Stone will create an electronic tool (Board Member Expectations) for monthly updating 

by each board member on their own.   
3. Angie Stone and Christina Paradowski will reach out to Francisco Rivera to have a 

prospectus new board member interview in near future.  
4. Steve Sampier will reach out to Ana Arguello regarding her interest in HUF’s board. 
5. Steve Sampier will reach out to Susie Levan regarding her interest in HUF’s board. 
6. Steve, Anthony and Lucia Steve will have a discussion regarding future recruitment. Broward 

College potential candidate. Also need legal and accounting skill set for recruitment to HUF’s 
board. 
 

 
Discussions:  

1. Approval of May 1, 2020 Minutes 
Motion to approve May minutes by Angie Stone. Seconded by Christina Paradowski 

 
2. Slate of Officers for 2021.  

Lucia Rodriguez will serve one year as Board Chair. John Guerrero will be the next Chair starting 
January 2021. We will need to figure out who our Chair Elect will be. Christina Paradowski has 
indicated if nominated and approved, she would be willing to serve Board Secretary. The 
Committee needs to identify potential candidates for the Treasurer position as Emma Pfister is 
terming out of the board. Emma and Steve Sampier have spoken several times Emma has agreed 
to continue to serve on the Finance Committee in 2021. Emma suggested Scott Karlen for 
Finance Chair and Treasurer. John Guerrero discussed that option with Scott and he is willing to 
serve if nominated/selected. Chuck Tatelbaum will also stay on the Finance Committee to provide 
the new Treasurer support. After summer break Steve will ask the committee about these officer 
positions and the 2021 slate; he asked the committee to review the list of board and committee 
members and to identify potential candidates.   

 
3. Board Member Engagement Sheet (formerly called Board Member Commitments and collectively 

“Scorecard” when presented as the collective outcomes of all board members)Anthony Abbate 
worked on the board member commitments with social distancing in mind. Individual board 
member engagement outcomes will be kept confidential and shared only with the Governance 
Chair, Board Chair and HUF CEO.  Angie Stone working on a method for board members to self-
report engagement outcomes on a monthly basis. The software will combine/aggregate all the 
data for board members and be presented as a cumulative snapshot of overall board member 
engagement outcome performance.  Josie Bacallao asked the committee to decide the final name 
for this document.   Board Member Expectations was the final choice after discussion.   

 
An detailed discussion by the committee led to the final creation of what is believed to be realistic 
expects from board members during the coronavirus.  The final document will updated by HUF 

17



  

 

staff and approved by the Board of Directors at the June meeting. Thank you to Tony Abbate for 
editing the document. 

 
4. Annual Retreat Update 

Steve shared the board has decided to break retreat down to small meetings instead. In August, 
the board will meet to go over strategic planning. Steve encouraged committee to review the 
document.  

 
5. Recruitment  

Francisco Rivera: Lucia introduced him to HU. And Josie and Felipe met him by phone. He has 
expressed interest in HUF board.. Next step would be an online interview with Francisco. Angie 
and Christina will reach out to Francisco to have the interview in near future. (They have his self-
nomination and resume.) 

 
6. Other Updates: Steve will reach out to Ana Arguello but since she is about to give birth perhaps he 

will try again in near future. But she is very active in the Marketing committee. Steve will reach out 
to Susie Levan again. Anthony Abbate asked is we are trying to recruit from Broward College, 
Anthony suggested the Provost and he would be happy to make the introduction. Josie suggested 
Anthony, Lucia and Steve have a discussion regarding future recruitment. Legal and accounting 
are most pressing needs of skill set for recruitment to HUF’s board. 
 

7. New Board Member: Consideration of Jorge de Apodaca. 
Steve asked Jorge, why do you want to return to the board? Jorge said during this current time we 
are living in, he would like to honor his Father who came illegally from Cuba. He led a good life 
and to his credit his grandchildren are living thriving lives. Jorge de Apodaca is a HUF Board 
Member Emeritus. 
 
Steve Sampier nominated Jorge de Apocada to return to the board.  Anthony Abbate seconded 
the motion. The motion passed.  
 

8. Other Business/Updates if Available 
New Board Member Orientation:  
Jorge would like the Governance committee members to have a conversation with a new board 
member regarding HUF’s Engagement Sheet (formerly called Commitments & Scorecard) and 
expectations. Steve shared that the Board Chair is having that discussion. He believes 
Governance should be part of the conversation too, to capture input of experience of recruitment, 
onboarding, etc. Christina suggested having a Governance committee member have this 
conversation (Post Orientation interview: #4) two months after becoming board member. This 
would be whomever would be the coach/connector and Governance committee member. The 
Connector/Governance committee member would not need to attend orientations, the interview 
would be after the three online orientations have taken place. Anthony suggested online 
orientation sessions be an hour, 30 minutes orientation and 30 minute Q&A. The new recruit 
needs to review online items, prior to orientation. Steve suggested having a debrief of Martiza 
Alvarez about her orientation experience regarding the process as it is a new online format. The 
Governance Committee Chair is responsible for scheduling the post-orientation debrief with new 
board members.  

 
Next Meeting: 

Friday, August 7, 2020 @9am. Taking a break in July. 

18



Marketing Committee Meeting Minutes 
June 10, 2020  

On Zoom:  Lesli Cartaya-Franco, Maguana Jean, Juliana 
Esguerra, Katherin Gallego and Shani Wilson  

Excused: Ana Arguello, Josie Bacallao, Lucia 
Rodriguez, Felina Rosales-Furer 

Action Items: 

1. Kathy Gallego will email the committee the E-Summit workshop topics for 
suggestions on subject matter experts. Deadline is Monday, June 22, 2020 

2. Lesli Cartaya-Franco to reach out to author Seth Godin via Twitter for book 
donation. 
________________________________________________________________ 
 

• Kathy Gallego mentioned she would be taking minutes for June and it was suggested by 
Shani Wilson and Lesli Cartaya-Franco to record the meeting. All those in the meeting 
were aware of the recording and approved.  

• Motion moved to approve May minutes by Lesli Cartaya-Franco, 2nd by Maguana Jean. 
• Lesli shared that the focus for this meeting would be the E-Summit and mentioned how 

the timeframe was moved from an on-site event in September to fully virtual experience 
in August. 

• Ana Arguello had previously suggested sending a survey to former attendees to ask 
what topics they wanted for this year’s E-Summit. The survey went out in May and Shani 
shared the results. More than half of the respondents preferred a morning conference 
and shared topics they would like to see covered in the event, anticipating what they 
thought would be their future needs. The topics of the workshop were based on 50% + 
response. Key topics were: Digital Marketing, Business Planning, Leadership, Sales 
(Lead Gen and conversion) and post COVID-19 response to stay relevant. Shared and 
discussed in detail the overview of the E-Summit. 

• The following topics have been narrowed down for the workshops 
1. Marketing & Messaging, Post Pandemic & Emergency (Digital Marketing) and 

Crisis Marketing 
2. Business Planning – How to prepare for the next emergency 
3. Sales (Lead Gen and Conversion) 
4. Women led Businesses 
5. Lessons from COVID-19 – Moving your business to a digital environment 
6. Adapt or Die (borrowed the tagline from Jim Ryan, 2019 Keynote Speaker) 
7. Retooling Your Business, Post COVID-19 (Pivoting Your Business) 

• Plenary topics are for broader appeal 
1. The Crow & the Pitcher: The Small Business Owner's Guide to Resiliency 
2. Leadership    

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

19



 
 

 
 

• Shani requested help from the committee with any insight on the topics (more specifics) 
and with help to identify good subject matter experts to serve as a panelist for the 
workshops. 

• Shani also mentioned we are looking for American Dreamers candidates with diversity in 
industry and background. The biggest need is successful women entrepreneurs.  

• Lesli asked Shani to expand on the pre-requisites for American Dreamers and best rule 
of thumb is someone located in South Florida, familiar with our business climate.  

• For women entrepreneurs, Maguana suggested to review the South Florida Business 
Journal. 

• Lesli shared her experience of a virtual networking event and suggested that we adapt 
and incorporate into our E-Summit since people are missing out on the networking 
component by going virtual. It’s a limited time coffee talk or happy hour event through 
zoom with max of 25 people in attendance that would be asked to discuss their one 
piece of advice on one topic. Maguana shared that her team has weekly happy hour and 
helps keep communication open. 

• Shani asked what topics we could discuss during the coffee talk/happy hour and the 
following were suggested: 

1. How to stay connected while working remotely 
2. One thing you wish you'd known before COVID-19 (If you knew then, what you 

know now, what would you have done different)? 
3. What are you anticipating for 2021? How are you preparing? 
4. What inspires you? What books/podcast/publication do you recommend to 

another entrepreneur? 
• Lesli suggested author Seth Godin’s small books as a donor gift. Lesli follows him on 

Twitter and he has retweeted her several times so she will reach out to him and ask for 
book donations to our event. 

• Kathy discussed the need for more marketing committee members. Lesli has a friend 
who is the new PR for Publix. She will reach out to her. 
 
 

Next Meeting: Wednesday, July 8, 2020 

20



   

Public Policy & Advocacy Committee Meeting Minutes 
June 12, 2020—Zoom Meeting   

 
Present:  
Megan Turetsky, Carolina Cardozo, Heather Davidson, Dr. 
Maria Bernal, Dan Schevis, Lucia Rodriguez, Josie 
Bacallao, Otto Valenzuela and Felina Rosales-Furer 

Excused:  
Robbie Holroyd, Daphnee Sainvil, 
Commissioner Dick Blattner and 
Commissioner Julie Fishman  

Next Steps/Action Items:  
1) Otto Valenzuela will share more information on HUF’s voter registration texting to our 

Citizenship program grads.   
 

Discussions 
 

1) People 
 Welcome to Carolina Cardozo, new Co-Chair of PP&A Committee. 

 
2) Approve May 2020 Meeting Minutes   

Carolina Cardoza motioned to approve minutes. Maria Bernal seconded the motion.  
 

3) News and Updates 
 Grants awarded and overall budget Jan 2020-April 2021 is $215k. Two grants were 

awarded this past week, one a coalition around health/pubic charge education ($6K) and a 
second grant, Voices for Healthy Kids ($36K) focused on Medicaid expansion and rule 
changes. The latter providing a great deal of technical assistance which we plan to use for 
the Children of Immigrant Families Coalition but also for the HUF board and this committee.   

 Actions since last meeting. Otto Valenzuela shared HUF co-signed on a UnidosUS letter 
where the Covid-19 and the Hispanic community was the topic. This letter was shared with 
the Broward and Miami-Dade delegation. We are continuing to relationship building on both 
sides of the aisle. Push to reach out to Florida leadership on the moratorium on 
foreclosures and evictions. We received a response from the Governor’s Chief of Staff, 
Shane Strum.  Next week our actions will be on the Hero’s act passed in the House last 
week. Otto will be reaching out to Senators to ask to include those left out (DACA, TSP, 
etc.) in the previous aid packages.  

 Legislative updates? Heather Davidson shared that everything is on hold but that we will 
see a great deal of movement this month since the fiscal year is ending and a new budget 
must be approved by July 1. Only 20 bills have been signed by the Governor many were on 
Healthcare and Mental Health issues. Looks like next week the Budget will be presented to 
DeSantis, $500 million cut to budget especially in line item appropriations. The Governor 
will have two weeks to approve after receiving. Housing is still a priority in DeSantis’ budget, 
Sadowski could be cut or kept. Teacher salaries is another item he was championing, but 
we will see next week. Megan Turetsky shared we are getting very close to July 1st 
deadline. The early learning bill we worked on passed in the House but died in a committee 
meeting. Continue reaching out to Shane Strum (Chief of Staff) and Governor’s staff 
especially line items would be impactful for HUF. Work your relationships and do not reach 
out until the budget is on Governor’s desk. Josie Bacallao is in contact with Shane for 
critical items that impact Broward County.   
 

4) Presentation of Public Policy and Advocacy Recommendations for 2020 
HUF team reviewed the recommended policy list for HUF for the remainder of the year. Several 
items were highlighted because they will be HUF’s focus but noted this may be subject to change 
as the pandemic and other events change our priorities.  

 

21



   

HUF will make one additional change to this policy platform: We will add language from the Board 
of Director’s statement titled “Pandemic of Racism”. It is important for HUF to underscore its 
guiding principles and its support of racial & ethnic social justice. 
 
Most of the items are focus areas for UnidosUS. HUF is now working with numerous UnidosUS 
affiliates throughout Florida, meeting every other week. HUF will soon be reinvigorating the 
Children of Immigrant Families Coalition.  
 
Health is a big focus for HUF, especially now with Covid-19. Otto reviewed the policy platform for 
the year. There is a concern about a wave of foreclosures, moving forward HUF will tap the experts 
in the UnidosUS FL coalition. State EITC’s is an economic accelerator which gives us more of a 
case to push right now. Prioritize early learning education and English as second language/ native 
testing. ACLU is continuing litigation on SB-168. Support of DACA as we are waiting on Supreme 
Court decision. TPS is contingent on the pandemic. HUF supports rule changes in regard to the 
broken FL unemployment system. Josie shared there is a state task force called for by the 
governor to find out why the system failed. Senator Schumer is investigating why Florida is so 
behind getting unemployment checks to those who filed for unemployment (50th out of 50 states in 
its slow distribution of unemployment/Cares funds). When the time is right HUF will add our voice 
to this. Florida has among the lowest unemployment benefits (12 weeks, $275/per week) in nation 
and many hurdles to secure the dollars such as show proof you are regularly looking for work, 
testing in math, etc. We support the temporary rules that we hope are made permanent.  
 
Otto and Josie will have a phone meeting with Rep. Omphrey to discuss the letter HUF mailed out.  
 
Motion: Dan Schevis motioned to approve the updated 2020 Public Policy and Advocacy Agenda 
Maria Bernal provided the second and the motion passed.  
 

5) Expansion of Committee—Group Discussion 
Discussed the recruitment of elected officials for the Children of Immigrant Families Steering 
Committee. Heather suggests communicating with legislatures for their advice and opinions, 
getting their thoughts and expertise. She tends to keep them away from having them on any 
committee because of their schedules and we want to stay neutral. Megan says for local elects, 
engage them in sharing our priorities. Our issues will become their issues. Continue to share 
platform but better to keep them separate from the committee. Dan Schevis says it is important to 
stay neutral and non-partisan.  
 
Heather said important to be flexible for our issues for next year’s legislative session.   
 
HUF also is working on Voter Registration pilot. We are texting all of those that have become U.S. 
citizens through our Citizenship program. 1,800 texts are sent every two weeks. Otto will share 
more information with this committee.  
 
HUF also received a technology grant related to Corvid--19. We are looking to purchase a texting 
platform to capture more client cell numbers to expand our communication. Sharing program 
information and advocacy pieces 
 

Next Meeting: Friday, July 10, 2020 
 

 
 

22


	AGENDA
	Meeting #6
	Thursday, June 25, 2020

	Public Policy Agenda June-Dec 2020 -Highlights.pdf
	2020 Public Policy Platform: Covid-19 and the Immigrant Population of Florida
	2020 Public Policy Platform: Covid-19 and the Immigrant Population of Florida
	2020 Public Policy Platform: Covid-19 and the Immigrant Population of Florida
	2020 Public Policy Platform: Covid-19 and the Immigrant Population of Florida
	2020 Public Policy Platform: Covid-19 and the Immigrant Population of Florida
	2020 Public Policy Platform: Covid-19 and the Immigrant Population of Florida
	2020 Public Policy Platform: Covid-19 and the Immigrant Population of Florida
	2020 Public Policy Platform: Covid-19 and the Immigrant Population of Florida

	June 2020 Board Agenda.pdf
	AGENDA
	We will start the meeting promptly at 4pm
	BOARD OF DIRECTORS ATTENDANCE MATRIX

	BOARD 
	MEMBER





Latino Economic Agenda:
A Latino Perspective on US
Domestic Economic Policy



https://nalcab.org/





The coronavirus pandemic is moving through the US population, requiring an unprecedented
public health response to slow the spread of the virus that includes shutting down public
events and venues, from professional sporting events and concerts to neighborhood
restaurants. The resulting economic slowdown has already been sharp and dramatic. It is clear
that this crisis is having an immediate and hard-hitting impact on the service, hospitality and
transportation sectors, which disproportionately employ Latinos and low-wage workers, as well
as small businesses of all kinds.  Supply chain disruptions from the pandemic’s impact in China
are also reverberating through the US economy. While the full scope of the human tragedy and
economic impact are not yet clear, there can be no question that millions of people in the
United States will face intense hardship in the coming year.
 
Little more than a decade ago, the Great Recession devastated sectors of our economy and
geographic regions of our country that resulted in a disproportionately negative impact on
Latino communities. Many families have only begun to recover from that historic economic
crisis, only to be faced with another. The introduction to this document states that the future
strength and competitiveness of the US economy relies on achieving far broader financial
inclusion and, ultimately, greater economic mobility for all people living in the US. Achieving
these goals now dramatically hinges on the ability of our federal government to manage this
crisis and soften the economic blow, giving space for large portions of the private sector to get
back on its feet. A rapid fiscal stimulus that is appropriately targeted to the hardest hit
economic sectors and geographies will be generationally important to the economic strength of
our nation and our diverse Latino communities. 
 
In crafting an emergency economic response to the COVID-19 crisis and longer term recovery, it
is imperative to look beyond top line numbers and averages to consider the differing impact of
this crisis on diverse populations. The mechanisms and institutions that can effectively deliver
emergency financial relief and patient capital for recovery in some communities are different
from those that can effectively meet the needs of others. A responsible approach to addressing
this crisis will include deploying capital and other resources through a wide range of
institutions and networks that reflect the diversity of our economy and our nation’s
communities. We must also aggressively hold profiteers and predatory market actors
accountable, as well as major institutions that rely on public support, but fail to play their
appropriate role in a long term recovery.


Economic Recovery From COVID-19


2A Latino Perspective on US Domestic Economic Policy


This document was conceived, and largely written, prior to the COVID-19 outbreak. The
recommendations and perspectives presented herein are more urgent now than ever, including as
a part of a fiscal stimulus and our longer term approach to rebuilding the US economy.







TOP 10 LATINO ECONOMIC PRIORITIES


THE IMPORTANCE OF THE US CENSUS


#LatinoEconomicEngine


KEY ECONOMIC DATA ABOUT LATINOS


POLICY PERSPECTIVES & RECOMMENDATIONS


6


10


4


7


5


Table of Contents


ADVANCE MACROECONOMIC STABILITY
& LONG-TERM GROWTH


SUPPORT ECONOMIC MOBILITY FOR
WORKING CLASS FAMILIES


ADDRESS THE NATION'S AFFORDABLE
HOUSING CRISIS


STRENGTHEN NEIGHBORHOODS


INVEST IN PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
INFRASTRUCTURE


10


12


14


18
20


PROMOTE A VIBRANT & FAIR FINANCIAL
SERVICES MARKETPLACE


CATALYZE SMALL BUSINESS GROWTH


PREPARE WORKERS TO SUCCEED


INVEST IN PUERTO RICO


STRENGTHEN RURAL AMERICA


20


23
23
25
26


A Latino Perspective on US Domestic Economic Policy







#LatinoEconomicEngine
Latinos are driving demographic growth in the United States and are key to our nation’s
economic strength. The data is clear: Latinos are an engine for the US economy. Latinos
demonstrate high rates of workforce participation and entrepreneurship. The relative youth of
Latinos means that, from a macroeconomic perspective, public policy aimed at investing in the
economic strength of Latinos will have an enormous pay off. A report from the Joint Economic
Committee of the US Congress entitled The Economic State of the Latino Community in
America concludes, “Latinos living in the United States account for $2.3 trillion in economic
activity. In the future, they will play an increasingly crucial role in the economy. It is important
for US society and future economic growth that Latinos have every opportunity to reach their
economic potential.” 
 
While the US Census projects that Latinos will make up 28% of the population by 2060, Latinos
have, on average, less wealth and lower incomes than the national average, and experience
poverty at a higher rate. Similar challenges and opportunities exist for African Americans,
significant segments of the Asian Pacific-American community, in Native communities and
white working-class populations, among others. The future strength and competitiveness of our
economy relies on achieving far broader financial inclusion and, ultimately, greater economic
mobility for all people living in the US. 
 
Recognizing that we are all in this together, however, does not mean that the solutions for
distinct communities are the same. Even among Latinos there are significant differences that
must be acknowledged when shaping solutions. Tailoring domestic economic policy to the
specific circumstances of diverse populations is necessary for achieving the most effective and
equitable impacts.
 
That being understood, there is a coherent shared experience among tens of millions of people
of Latin American origin in the US, regardless of whether individuals chose to self-identify with
their country or community of origin, or as Latino, or Latinx. This experience unfortunately
includes being the target of racist and nativist stereotypes. Mobilizing the political will needed
to advance a domestic economic agenda and support economic mobility for Latinos will require
changing toxic narratives about Latinos that have been too common in our nation’s political
rhetoric, media and entertainment.
 
The following principles should shape our approach to domestic economic policymaking: (+)
Place a primary focus on economic strengths and opportunities rather than deficits and gaps;
(+) Take into account how race, language and place influence economic mobility; (+) Avoid
competitive framing among racial and ethnic communities and reject racist/nativist rhetoric;
and, (+) Identify specific, data-driven policy options that take into account the experience of
working class people. 
 
This document is intended as a non-partisan resource, not a statement of orthodoxy. It reflects
the experiences of the NALCAB Network whose work advances economic mobility in diverse
Latino communities. The following are ten priorities that define a Latino Perspective on
Domestic Economic Policy.
 


4A Latino Perspective on US Domestic Economic Policy







10 Priorities That Define A Latino
Perspective on US Domestic Economic Policy


1


2


3


4


5


6


7


8


Advance macroeconomic stability and long-term growth with a balanced
monetary policy that prioritizes maximum employment for low wage workers
as well as with predictable and fair immigration and trade policies.


Support economic mobility for working class people through equitable tax,
health care and education policies.


Address the nation’s affordable housing crisis by increasing access to
affordable homeownership and rental housing.


Strengthen neighborhoods through place-based investments that advance
equitable economic opportunity and preserve cultural integrity.


Invest in public transportation infrastructure that connects workers
to centers of employment and health care resources.


Promote a vibrant and fair financial services marketplace by managing
systemic risk, ensuring strong consumer financial protections, and promoting
diversity in institutional governance.


Catalyze small business growth by increasing access to capital and business
development services for underserved small business owners & entrepreneurs.


Prepare workers to succeed in a changing economy with relevant
workforce development strategies and enforcement of workplace safety
regulation.


9 Invest in Puerto Rico with a Marshall Plan-like investment in housing,
economic development, and local government capacity building.


10 Strengthen rural America by improving economic opportunities for
diverse populations.







The Constitution mandates a count of all people in the United States, every ten years. The
Census Bureau carries out this constitutional duty and collects critical data about the people
who live in the United States and about the economy through a wide range of surveys and
information gathering activities. The data provided by the Census Bureau is foundational for our
democracy and our economy. Data collected through the decennial census impacts how
congressional districts are apportioned and drawn and how trillions of dollars in federal
funding is distributed to local communities. Census data shapes private sector decisions in real
estate, finance and more.
 
According to the US Census Bureau, the decennial census has always significantly
undercounted Latinos. When Latinos are not counted, the communities in which they live
receive less federal investment and less accurate political representation. While progress has
been made in achieving a more accurate count of Latinos, political influence has significantly
undermined efforts to roll out the 2020 Census.
 
Just as structures have been created to ensure the independence of our monetary policy making
process, steps must be taken to better insulate the US Census Bureau from political influence,
especially the process for establishing the methodology and the budget for the decennial
census.
 
 


The Importance of the US Census


6A Latino Perspective on US Domestic Economic Policy







Latinos are driving US demographic growth. According to the US Census, from 2008 to 2018,
the Latino share of the total US population increased from 16% to 18%. Latinos accounted for
more than half (52%) of all US population growth over this period and, for more than a decade,
the majority of Latino population growth has come from natural increase rather than
immigration. Latinos were the youngest major population segment with a median age of 30 in
2018.
  
Latinos demonstrate disproportionately strong rates of workforce participation but earn lower
wages. According to the Federal Reserve Bank of St. Louis’ FRED economic data, labor force
participation among Latinos was 67.3%, compared to 63.2% in the overall US labor force.
According to the US Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS), Hispanics tended to experience shorter
periods of unemployment compared to Whites and Blacks; however, Hispanics also tended to
earn lower wages. According to the BLS, weekly median earnings in the fourth quarter of 2019
among Hispanic full-time workers were lower than for any major demographic group,
approximately 78% of weekly median earnings among non-Hispanic White full-time workers.
Latinas, in particular, experience an enormous wage gap. According to the National Women’s
Law Center, in 1987 Latinas were paid 53.5% of what white, non-Hispanic men were paid and
in 2017 that percentage dropped to 53.0. US BLS data demonstrates that Latinos are
overrepresented in occupational employment that puts food on our tables, roofs over our
heads, and products in our local stores, including such sectors as: agriculture, construction,
grounds cleaning, food preparation, transportation, and production.
 
Latinos exhibit high rates of entrepreneurship and Latino-owned businesses have enormous
potential for greater job creation. The Stanford Graduate School of Business’ Latino
Entrepreneurship Initiative published the 2018 Latino Entrepreneurship Gap Report, which
indicates that Latinos are overrepresented among startups but make up only 5% of employer
businesses with more than $1 million in annual revenue. The report concludes, “Latinos own
350,000 employer businesses in the US, creating nearly 3 million American jobs, and driving a
GDP of more than $2 trillion.”  If Latinos owned employer businesses at the same rate as non-
Latino whites, this would represent an extra 650,000 employer businesses and an additional
5.3 million jobs. According to the Peterson Institute for International Economics, 98% of all US
exporters are small businesses. 
 
In an economy that relies on consumer spending, Latino consumers are a source of economic
stability. Data from US BLS, Nielsen, and Statista illustrates that Hispanic consumer spending is
a critical element of overall US economic activity. According to Statista, Hispanics spent 1.3
trillion US dollars in 2015 and the buying power is expected to increase to 1.7 trillion US
dollars by 2020. 
 
Latinos are bringing life to many otherwise declining rural communities. Where there is
population growth in rural areas, the US Census estimates that minorities account for 83%. The
Hispanic population in nonmetropolitan areas grew at the fastest rate of any racial or ethnic
group during the 1990s and post-2000 time period.
 
 


Key Economic Data About Latinos 


7A Latino Perspective on US Domestic Economic Policy







Latino immigrants, documented and undocumented, are
key economic contributors. According to the Pew Research
Center, about 34% of Latinos were foreign born in 2015.
The Center for American Progress finds that Deferred
Action for Childhood Arrivals (DACA) recipients and their
households pay $5.7 billion in federal taxes and $3.1
billion in state and local taxes annually. They make $613.8
million in annual mortgage payments and pay $2.3 billion
in rent to their landlords each year. The Institute on
Taxation and Economic Policy estimates that
undocumented immigrants pay about $11.7 billion a year
in state and local taxes, while the IRS estimated that ITIN
holders paid over $9 billion in withheld payroll taxes.
 
Latinos are experiencing growth in educational
attainment. According to a report from the Joint Economic
Committee of Congress, as of 2017, approximately 17% of
Latinos had a bachelor’s degree, up from 9% in 1990. The
Latino Donor Collaborative reports that from 2010 to 2017
the number of college-educated Latinos grew 51%
compared to growth of 21% for non-Latinos.
 
The economic costs of insufficiently addressed Latino
health challenges are staggering. Latinos have distinct
health concerns from other demographic groups and,
according to the Henry J Kaiser Family Foundation, 25% of
Hispanic non-elderly adults were uninsured in 2017,
compared to 8% of non-Hispanic White non-elderly adults.
In 2013, prior to the implementation of the Affordable
Care Act, 40% of Hispanic non-elderly adults were
uninsured. According to the Centers for Disease Control
and Prevention (CDC), heart disease, cancer and stroke
were three of the top five causes of death for males and
females across almost all major demographic groups,
including Hispanics. However, the 2015 CDC report on
Hispanic health indicators documents that Hispanics were
about 50% more likely to die from diabetes than non-
Hispanic whites and the CDC’s 2017 morbidity data
indicates that liver disease is a particular concern for
Hispanic males and Alzheimer’s disease is a particular
concern among Hispanic females. The costs are
staggering. For example, the American Diabetes
Association estimates that the total economic cost
attributable to diabetes in 2017 was $89.9 billion, of
which Hispanics make up a disproportionate share. 


8


Key Economic Data About Latinos (continued)







Latinos are disproportionately exposed to toxic environmental pollutants. According to
“Hispanic Health in the USA,” published in Public Health Reviews in 2016, Hispanics are more
likely to reside in areas with increased industrial pollution than non-Hispanic Whites;  more
than 21% of Hispanics were estimated to live near a Superfund site; and more than 28% of
Hispanics resided near a highway with high traffic volume – all factors that have been linked to
adverse health outcomes.
 
Latinos have limited access to credit and banking services but are a critical growth demographic
in financial services. According to the 2017 Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation's National
Survey of Unbanked and Underbanked Households, 31.5% of Hispanic households had no
mainstream credit (compared with 14.4 % of white households) and 14.0% of Hispanic
households were unbanked (compared to 6.5% of all US households). While lack of access to
financial services and “credit invisibility” limit the wealth building potential, many in the
financial services industry understand that Latinos are a key growth demographic. For example,
a June 2015 Urban Institute report entitled, “Headship and Homeownership,” indicates that
Hispanics will comprise 56% of all new homebuyers by 2030.
 
The Latino homeownership rate has recovered slowly after the recession. According to the 2018
State of Hispanic Homeownership Report published by the National Association of Hispanic
Real Estate Professionals (NAHREP), the Latino homeownership rate has risen from 45.6% in
2015 to 47.1% in 2018. A report from the Urban Institute projects that Latinos will make up
56% of all new homeowners by 2030. A 2017 report from the Federal Reserve entitled Recent
Trends in Wealth-Holding by Race and Ethnicity: Evidence from the Survey of Consumer
Finances indicates that 39% of wealth among Latinos is derived from home equity.
 
Latino renters face significant challenges in today’s housing market. According to State of the
Nation’s Housing 2019, published by the Joint Center for Housing Studies at Harvard, 53.5% of
Hispanic renters are cost burdened, paying more than 30% of their income for housing costs.
Further, research from NALCAB has shown that many predominately Latino neighborhoods
throughout the country are experiencing sustained appreciation in real estate values and, in
some cases, full blown gentrification. 
 
Latinos are more likely to rely on public transit. According to a 2016 Pew Research Center
report entitled Who Relies on Public Transit in the US, Hispanics are more likely to live in urban
areas and, among urban residents, 27% of Hispanics report taking public transit daily or weekly.


Key Economic Data About Latinos (continued)


9







Pursue a balanced monetary policy that prioritizes maximum employment for low wage
workers. The Federal Reserve (the Fed) is the nation’s central bank that sets interest rates. The
Fed has a dual mandate from Congress to support maximum employment and achieve price
stability. Monetary policy is the process of setting interest rates to achieve this balance, which
is currently defined by a target of 2% annual inflation. Over the past decade, the US economy
has experienced low inflation in the context of historically low unemployment, which has
surprised many economists and confounded traditional economic models. There is an
increasingly strong consensus among economists that fundamental changes in the US economy
and workforce require a new approach to monetary policy in order to correctly balance the risks
represented by unemployment vs. inflation.
 
The US economy has come to be characterized by enormous disparities in employment, income
and wealth that strongly correlate to race, ethnicity and geography. As a result, “top line”
economic data or averages have become less meaningful because they tend to mask the reality
for most workers. Hispanics and Blacks are demographically younger than the US population as
a whole and have a strikingly different economic experience than the “average” worker. Our
economy is faced with a fundamental and long-term challenge: the people who are the
demographic future of our nation are not sufficiently well positioned to lead our economy.
Failing to recognize and shape policy to address this risk, particularly as it relates to
demographic segments that are driving our nation’s demographic growth, will result in
constrained economic growth.
 
An appropriately balanced monetary policy should consider the following.       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ensure independence, transparency and diversity in monetary policy decision making systems.
Recent efforts by the Executive Branch to influence, and even strong-arm, the monetary
policymaking process highlights the need to maintain the independence of the Federal Reserve
and the Federal Open Markets Committee (FOMC). When decision making at the Federal
Reserve fails to be sufficiently transparent and when its governing boards fail to represent and
reflect the public, it raises the need for greater oversight from the Executive and Legislative
Branches, which can undermine the independence of the system. In order to maintain public
confidence in the Fed’s independent decision making, there is a need for greater transparency
in its operations and greater diversity in its governance, particularly with respect to
representatives of labor and the community development sector who deeply understand how
working-class people and people of color experience the US economy. 
 
 


Highest level economic data, such as the unemployment rate, should be routinely
presented disaggregated by race, ethnicity and geography to communicate the striking
differences in the economic experiences of different segments of the US population.
Wage growth among low wage workers, rather than aggregate wage growth, and
significant reductions in unemployment among people of color, should be primary
indicators of sustainable movement toward full employment. 
The Federal Reserve should examine whether an incrementally higher inflation target
would better achieve a balance between supporting full employment and ensuring
price stability.
Monetary policy should adjust rapidly to financial crises and avoid rapid tightening
during an extended recovery.


Policy Perspectives & Recommendations


10A Latino Perspective on US Domestic Economic Policy


Advance Macroeconomic Stability & Long-term Growth


Pursue a Balanced Monetary Policy







Make DACA permanent. The Deferred Action for Childhood Arrivals (DACA) program is a
common sense first step in achieving a broader solution to the broken US immigration system.
This program should be passed into law and made permanent. 
 
Ensure immigration policy supports the workforce needs of the US economy. Tens of millions of
Baby Boomers are retiring, and native-born workers will not fully compensate for their exit
from the labor force. According to projections released by the US Bureau of Labor Statistics in
September 2019, an additional 11.5 million new jobs will exist by 2026 while only 7.9 million
new non-immigrant workers will have been added to the workforce. Immigrants contribute
valuable skills that complement the native-born population and are a critical economic
resource. Address existing visa shortages that contribute to the scarcity of labor and stifle
economic growth. 
 
Pass comprehensive immigration reform. Immigration enhances the US workforce, the tax base,
and the consumer base. Recent US immigration policy has, in many cases, caused fear and/or
inflicted harm and resulted in negative economic consequences, including constraining
production in economic sectors that rely on immigrant labor and reducing entrepreneurial
activity. The US immigration system must be depoliticized and rationalized through a bipartisan
comprehensive immigration reform that repeals “zero tolerance” policies. 
 
 
 


11A Latino Perspective on US Domestic Economic Policy


Implement US Immigration Policy That Supports the US Economy and Reflects Our Values


Pursue stability in international trade. Trade policy has implications for nearly every sector of
our economy. According to the Office of the US Trade Representative, exports account for more
than one quarter of our economic growth. For our global economy to work for everyone it must
provide fair market access and a system for addressing trade disputes. Ill-conceived trade policy
can create instability, increase inequality, and slow economic growth. Many of the top
industries in the US involved in international trade, including construction, manufacturing, and
meat and poultry processing, have a high concentration of Latino workers. 
 
Ensure strong worker protections and enhance export opportunities for small businesses in
trade agreements. Trade agreements establish basic “rules of the road” that fundamentally
shape economic opportunities for workers and small business exporters in the United States
and in the nations that are our trading partners. It is difficult for businesses to maintain
adequate standards for workers in the US if similar standards for workers in other countries are
not enforceable through our trade agreements. When a willingness to tolerate poor labor
standards becomes an economic advantage for companies in other countries, the whole world
gets caught in a “race to the bottom.”  The size of the US market and the extent to which the
US provides protection for international trade routes are considerable points of leverage in US
trade negotiations. The US Trade Representative should negotiate for strong worker protections
connected to products and services that are subject to trade deals.
 
Small businesses are often at a disadvantage in dealing with complex export rules and tariffs
because they do not have the scale of operations or the necessary cashflow to manage
sometimes challenging, costly and/or slow implementation of export and tariff processes.
Opening access to export markets for small businesses should be a central focus of US trade
policy and flexibility should be provided to small business exporters related to administrative 


Strengthen US Trade Policy


Policy Perspectives & Recommendations (continued)







and cost factors, while still ensuring the safety and security of our ports. Given that Latinos
make up a fast-growing share of US small business owners, including many with business
connections outside of the US, this issue is particularly important for Latino-owned business
growth.
 
Stabilize the trade relationship with Mexico and Canada and prioritize trade relationships in
Central America, South America, and the Caribbean. Turmoil in the trade relationship with
Mexico and Canada has had a significant negative impact on the US economy. There is a
pressing need to settle a fair-trade agreement that protects workers and stimulates small
business growth across North America. 
 
There has been insufficient prioritization of US trade relationships in Central America, South
America, and the Caribbean. There is a deep relationship between US trade policy and the
economic conditions of very low-income people across the region, which in turn is a major
driver of northward migration. 


12A Latino Perspective on US Domestic Economic Policy


Increase the percentage of earners that benefit from the Earned Income Tax Credit (EITC). The
EITC is among our nation’s most important anti-poverty tools. The EITC puts money back in the
pockets of low-income workers and their families, which in turn helps to minimize reliance on
federal safety net programs. Raising the maximum credit for childless workers and expanding
the age range to cover workers starting at age 19, instead of 25 will help millions more
Americans advance the economic ladder.
 
Expanding the Child Tax Credit (CTC). The CTC helps offset childcare and dependent-care
expenses and is a critical policy for fighting childhood poverty. The CTC is worth up to $2,000
per eligible child (under age 17) and includes a $500 non-refundable credit for families with
qualifying non-child dependents. Expanding the CTC to allow more low- and moderate-income
families to qualify and making it fully refundable and adjusted for inflation will reduce
childhood poverty and support stable families. 
 
Reduce or eliminate taxes on the first $100,000 of income for very small businesses and the
self-employed. In order to stimulate entrepreneurial activity and support the growth of very
small businesses, taxes on the first $100,000 of income for businesses earning approximately
$1 million or less, including self-employment taxes, should be dramatically reduced or
eliminated entirely. 
 
Further reduce the cap on the mortgage interest deduction for high value homes, ensuring an
exception for the counties with the highest cost housing. The mortgage interest deduction
represents an enormous tax expenditure and subsidy in the housing market. It is critical for
making homeownership achievable for working class people, but it represents an unnecessary
public subsidy for the wealthy and the luxury residential development industry. Recent changes
to the tax law reduced the cap on the mortgage interest deduction from the first $1 million in
mortgage debt to $750,000. This should be further reduced, ensuring an exception for counties
with the highest housing costs. 
 


Support Economic Mobility for Working Class Families


Create Tax Policy That Supports Economic Mobility


Policy Perspectives & Recommendations (continued)







13A Latino Perspective on US Domestic Economic Policy


Establish a “fair deal” corporate tax structure for the largest corporations. The most recent
dramatic reduction in the corporate income tax has contributed little to economic growth and
was primarily used by corporations for stock buy backs that have resulted in economic benefits
accruing to the largest stockholders. The corporate tax structure should ensure a “fair deal” for
the American public, especially with regard to the nation’s largest corporations. 


Improve Pre-K to 12th grade educational outcomes for underserved students. Ensure universal
access to prekindergarten regardless of ability to pay. Dramatically increase support for
educational support services and programs for underserved students in elementary schools that
have a track record of supporting improved educational outcomes. Improve access to health and
mental health services and resources in schools.
 
Make college more affordable. Increase the value of Pell Grants to cover a larger share of tuition
and put more money back into the pockets of Latino students, including targeted aid for
students eligible under the Deferred Action for Childhood Arrivals program, also known as
Dreamers. Make public community colleges affordable for all students. 
 
Increase retention and graduation rates for low-income students. Increase resources for
community college support services that increase graduation rates and transfers to universities.
Hold all universities and colleges reliant on federal student loans to finance enrollment
accountable for their retention and graduation rates. Invest in institutions that enroll
underserved students by increasing and permanently reauthorizing funding for Minority Serving
Institutions.


Improve Educational Outcomes and Increase Academic Opportunities 


Ensure access to quality affordable healthcare for everyone in the United States. Being
uninsured is a major barrier to achieving economic security. In the past three years, federal
health care policy has weakened coverage and raised costs. Latinos had the largest decrease in
the uninsured under the Affordable Care Act (ACA). According to the US Department of Health
and Human Services, over four million Latinos across the country gained coverage since the
ACA was enacted. Providing a public option increases competition, lowers the cost of health
care, and helps expands health care coverage. 
 
Establish real financial incentives for reducing the cost of health care services, prescription
drugs, and medical devices while prioritizing preventive care and wellness education. To
achieve a financially sustainable health care system, the cost of health care services,
prescription drugs, and medical devices must be controlled. Further, far more investment in
preventive care and wellness education is necessary to change the behaviors of the American
public and reduce the incidence of preventable diseases. To be broadly effective, wellness
education and preventive care must be delivered in partnership with community-based
organizations that can provide culturally and linguistically relevant outreach and services. 
 
Invest in research and treatment for diseases that are leading causes of death among Latinos.
Cancer, heart disease, diabetes, liver disease and Alzheimer’s are leading causes of death for
major segments of the US Latino population and have enormous economic costs. There is a
pressing need to increase investment in ethnically relevant research and affordable treatments
aimed at these diseases, including for example reducing the cost of insulin, which has
skyrocketed over the past two decades.
 


Achieve Universal Access to Health Care


Policy Perspectives & Recommendations (continued)







13A Latino Perspective on US Domestic Economic Policy


Reign in predatory for-profit colleges and student loan schemes. Address deceptive practices
among for-profit colleges by establishing a process to discharge federal loans of students that
were defrauded by their colleges. Protect student loan borrowers from predatory practices by
reestablishing a dedicated student loan office at the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau
(CFPB).


Policy Perspectives & Recommendations (continued)


Address the Nation's Affordable Housing Crisis


Enhance GSE affordable housing goals and duty to serve rule. Congress chartered Fannie Mae
and Freddie Mac government sponsored enterprises (GSEs) to ensure broad access to capital for
homebuyers and rental housing providers by providing liquidity in the secondary market.
Congress required the GSEs to establish explicit goals for promoting affordable homeownership
and rental housing for underserved communities. Since 2008, as a result of the foreclosure
crisis, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac have been in government conservatorship. It is no longer
appropriate, nor effective, for the GSEs to remain in conservatorship. GSE reform should reflect
the following core principles:


Pass Housing Finance Reform that Supports the Production and Preservation of
Affordable Housing


Ensure that the GSEs are appropriately capitalized and limit the risk that they can
assume.
Maintain the GSEs “duty to serve” as well as strong affordable housing goals for the
GSEs.
Preserve the 30-year fixed mortgage and ensure that pricing practices support
mortgage access, including by limiting the extent to which risk-based pricing is used to
micro-target borrowers utilizing data and methods that may not accurately measure
risk for underserved populations.
Establish a method by which the GSEs help to redress the clear impacts of racial
discrimination fostered by the federal housing finance system and federal housing
policy.
Ensure a strong mechanism for preventing the GSEs from doing business with any
mortgage provider with a poor fair lending track record.
Require GSEs to take climate change into account in all of their operations.
Maintain a strong regulator for Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac.


14







15A Latino Perspective on US Domestic Economic Policy


Expand resources for homebuyer counseling. Based on past recommendations from the Housing
Counseling Federal Advisory Committee, Congress should establish a modest transaction fee of
approximately $55 on all single-family closings to provide funding on a formula basis to
providers of high-quality homebuyer counseling services certified by the US Department of
Housing and Urban Development. High quality homebuyer counseling services help to mitigate
risks for mortgage lenders and homeowners alike. A more robust national housing counseling
system will help to avoid a repeat of the foreclosure crisis that sparked the Great Recession. 
 
Support a nonprofit mortgage lending pilot program. Congress should establish a pilot
program, administered by US HUD, through which qualified nonprofit mortgage lenders can
access grant funding to support access to responsible homeownership for low-income
households, including by providing such products and services as down payment assistance,
second mortgages, and homebuyer counseling. This pilot has the potential to leverage well
over $250 million in mortgage financing for first liens, generating jobs and stimulating a wide
range of related local economic activity. US HUD should be required to track the extent to
which this pilot program leverages additional capital and evaluate the local economic impact.


Strengthen and sustain the Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) Program. The LIHTC
program has been the primary financing mechanism for producing and preserving affordable
housing in the United States over the past two decades. The program should be strengthened
and sustained, including ensuring increased authorization in order to target income restrictions
below 60% of area median income. States should be encouraged to establish Qualified
Allocation Plans that allow LIHTC to be used for a variety of local market contexts, including a
priority on developing affordable rental housing near jobs, quality education and health care
resources as well as to support well designed neighborhood revitalization plans. States should
take the impacts of climate change into account in their implementation of LIHTC Programs.
 
Increase capital investment in public housing. The estimated unmet capital needs of public
housing in the United States exceeds $25 billion dollars. Capital funding for public housing
renovation and redevelopment must be dramatically increased and flexibility must be provided
to operators in order to facilitate leveraging private financing.
 
Support small multifamily rental rehabilitation pilot project. Congress should establish a pilot
program, administered by US HUD, through which qualified teams led by non-profit
organizations would receive funding to produce and preserve affordable housing in multifamily
residential properties with fewer than 75 units that provide access to regional employment
centers, quality education and health care resources.


Expand the Supply of Quality Affordable Rental Housing


Policy Perspectives & Recommendations (continued)


Strengthen the Federal Housing Administration (FHA). Borrowers of color disproportionately
utilize FHA loans, making the agency crucial for addressing the homeownership gap. Congress
should fully resource the FHA, with a particular focus on a comprehensive information
technology upgrade. FHA should reduce its premiums and eliminate the life-of-loan premium to
ensure greater access for borrowers. Further, FHA should minimize the use of risk-based pricing
utilizing data and methods that may not accurately measure risk for underserved populations.
The FHA should not be a borrower of last resort and any proposal to limit its applicability only
to first time homebuyers or low-income populations are misguided. FHA should take the
impacts of climate change into account in all of its operations  


Ensure Responsible Access to Affordable Homeownership







16A Latino Perspective on US Domestic Economic Policy


Congress should establish a new Climate Resiliency Block Grant Program, similar to the existing
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program administered by US HUD, but separate to
ensure that climate resiliency funding is not placed in competition locally with funding
intended primarily for more immediate needs in low- and moderate-income communities. At
least half of the funding utilized by local communities under the Climate Resiliency Block Grant
Program should primarily focus on risks and resiliency in LMI communities and program
guidelines should be adapted to the extraordinary costs often involved in well-planned local
climate risk mitigation efforts. A Climate Resiliency Block Grant Program will result in greater
local disaster preparedness, reduce the cost of future disaster recovery efforts and ultimately
save lives.
 
Build the capacity of local governments to respond to disasters and plan for resilience. With
increasing frequency, natural disasters are impacting communities that have limited local
government capacity to administer the volume of funds that typically become available as a
result of a disaster. The result can be that disaster recovery efforts move far more slowly, and
programs are less well designed than they could be. Immediately after a disaster, the Federal
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) directly administers short term programs to address
immediate and emergency needs. The longer-term recovery effort, however, is typically in the
hands of local government. There is a need to strengthen the capacity of local governments
with technical assistance and resources to support planning. There is also the need to consider
whether some elements of disaster recovery efforts are so consistent from place to place that
they could be administered by one agency or a small number of providers without encroaching
on reasonable concerns for local control. 
 
Better meet the needs of renters after a disaster. The distribution of disaster recovery funding,
both through FEMA and US HUD, typically does not take into account the full losses of renters
because they are more difficult to document compared to losses suffered by homeowners.
Congress should require FEMA and US HUD to better consider the needs and losses of renters
after a disaster and more equitably distribute dollars. Given that Latinos are disproportionately
represented among renters, this would have an overall positive effect for Latinos. 


Improve data and planning around manufactured housing. Include residential manufactured
homes in US HUD Consolidated Plans to help state and local jurisdictions assess their
affordable housing needs, market conditions, and make place-based resource decisions. 
 
Hold owners of manufactured housing communities accountable for the conditions of the
infrastructure provided to residents. Manufactured housing is a significant source of
unsubsidized affordable housing in this country. In the US there are close to 22 million people


Develop a National Policy on Manufactured Housing   


Policy Perspectives & Recommendations (continued)


Establish a permanent Disaster Recovery Program and a new Climate Resiliency Block Grant
Program. A 2019 report by the Government Accountability Office (GAO) entitled, “Disaster
Recovery: Recent Disasters Highlight Progress and Challenges,” recommended that a disaster
recovery program be made permanent in law instead of relying on individual appropriations
from disaster to disaster. Relying on individual appropriations means that an act of Congress is
necessary to make funding available for recovery after each disaster and the rules for oversight
of the funding may change based on the language in each appropriation bill. A permanent
program with consistent rules will enhance the federal government’s ability to move quickly
and support communities consistently. 


Ensure Equitable Disaster Recovery and Invest in Climate Resiliency







17A Latino Perspective on US Domestic Economic Policy


Policy Perspectives & Recommendations (continued)


that live in manufactured housing. Investing in this sector of the housing market increases
quality housing and homeownership opportunities for those who may not be able to afford the
cost of a site-built home. The National Manufactured Housing Construction and Safety
Standards Act of 1974 requires that these homes meet the highest standards of protection
including health, safety, energy efficiency, and durability.
 
Implement a manufactured housing community cooperative pilot. There has been important
work to preserve affordability in manufactured housing communities vulnerable to
displacement due to their age or real estate market appreciation, including using cooperative
ownership models. It is time to invest in a federal pilot project to explore how to scale this
important work.


Implement the 2015 Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing (AFFH) rule. The Fair Housing Act,
enacted in 1968, prohibits discrimination in the sale, rental, or financing of housing based on
race, color, religion, national origin, sex, familial status, and handicap. The 2015 rule requires
jurisdictions that receive Community Planning and Development grants and Public Housing
Authorities to assess their regions for issues concerning fair housing such as concentrated
poverty, disproportionate housing needs, and areas of segregation and to create a plan to
address these issues. In 2018, US HUD delayed implementation of the AFFH rule limiting the
ability of communities to combat inequities and promote fair housing practices. US HUD should
implement the 2015 rule.
 
Investigate fair housing concerns in gentrifying communities. US HUD should conduct focused
investigations of fair housing violations in neighborhoods that are experiencing rapid
appreciation in real estate values and significant displacement of low- and moderate-income
households. Further, cities should be encouraged to examine the potential fair housing impact
of major public investments that could spark significant real estate appreciation in and around
low- and moderate-income communities. 
 
Maintain the disparate impact standard. The Fair Housing Act establishes the Disparate Impact
Standard which prohibits policies and practices from inadvertently having a discriminatory
effect. In 2019, US HUD proposed a rule with a burden shifting framework to increase
requirements and make it nearly impossible for victims of discrimination to make disparate
impact claims. The disparate impact standard must remain intact. 
 


Enforce Fair Housing Rights


Ensure robust resources to address the nation’s housing crisis. Expand federal funding of
existing programs that help address the affordable housing crisis including the Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG), HOME Investment Partnerships program (HOME), the Public
Housing Capital Fund, and the Housing Trust Fund (HTF), among other critical programs.
 
Invest in the capacity of municipalities, counties, states and non-profit organizations. Congress
funds numerous programs that are critical for strengthening the capacity of US HUD grantees
to effectively implement housing and community development programs, including
government agencies and non-profit organizations. These programs include the Community
Compass Technical Assistance Program and the National Resource Network (focused on local
and state governments), the Section 4 Capacity Building for Community Development Program 


Ensure Robust Federal Housing and Community Development Appropriations and
Strengthen Local Capacity to Manage These Investments







18A Latino Perspective on US Domestic Economic Policy


Policy Perspectives & Recommendations (continued)


(focused on non-profit organizations) and the Rural Capacity Building for Community
Development and Affordable Housing Program (serves both non-profits and local governments
in rural communities). The technical assistance resources made available through these
programs promote effective stewardship of public funding and support local government
andnon-profit organizations to adapt to changing needs and opportunities in their
communities. In order to strengthen the impact of these valuable programs, Congress should
direct the Secretary to expand the availability of technical support to HUD grantees and
develop a coordinated strategy across these capacity building programs to ensure equitable
impact in geographically, racially and ethnically diverse communities and organizations.


 
Establish the Strong Neighborhoods Program. Congress should authorize the Strong
Neighborhoods Program, building on learnings from the Neighborhood Stabilization Program
Round II (NSP II) authorized in 2008, for the purpose of supporting local communities to
strengthen neighborhoods in which residents experience a high level of housing vulnerability
due to diverse local market challenges ranging from significant disinvestment to gentrification
to environmental contamination. 
 
The Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program is the key federal program that
helps establish a foundation on which local neighborhood development efforts are built. For
many smaller cities, especially in the South where local tax revenue tends to be less, CDBG is
crucial for responding to a wide range of needs in low- and moderate-income neighborhoods.
Where particular neighborhoods face extraordinary challenges, CDBG is insufficient and local
municipal leaders and community development professionals need additional resources and
tools. 
 
Federal neighborhood investment programs have typically focused primarily on revitalization in
neighborhoods where market conditions, including blight, crime, outdated public housing
and/or environmental problems, prevented the private market from functioning effectively.
There is an ongoing need for federal funding focused on neighborhood revitalization; however,
there is also a need to make investments in neighborhoods that are experiencing rapid
appreciation in real estate values that are causing large scale displacement – gentrification.
The next generation federal neighborhood investment program must provide local grantees
with the flexibility to respond to diverse local market conditions. 
 
The Neighborhood Stabilization Program Round II (NSP II), authorized by Congress in the
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) stimulus and administered by US HUD,
produced important learnings for how a scaled federal grant program can be used by local
communities to strengthen neighborhoods experiencing diverse local market conditions. Some
of the biggest differences between the NSP II program and other block grant programs were: (+)
NSP II was competitively bid and funding was only provided to well-prepared applicants that
could demonstrate their capacity and readiness; (+) NSP II did not limit the list of eligible
applicants to municipal agencies and public housing authorities, but also allowed consortia of
non-profit housing developers and CDFIs to apply (many of the top performing grantees were
non-profit consortia); (+) NSP II required applicants to define specific target areas, to document
their understanding of those specific local market conditions, and to explain clearly how their
proposed investments would strengthen neighborhoods. 


Enforce Fair Housing RightsStrengthen Neighborhoods







19


Policy Perspectives & Recommendations (continued)


Support a cultural and economic heritage district pilot project. There are many neighborhoods
in both urban, rural and tribal/native communities that have a well-defined cultural heritage
and public art. Cultural heritage is not only central to the identity of the place and long-term
residents, but also to the neighborhood’s economic vitality. Tourism, centers of small business
that cater to cultural interests and light manufacturing of culturally important products are all
typical in such neighborhoods. The cities of Minneapolis and San Antonio are among many that
have invested in culturally important neighborhoods and commercial districts. While large
cities may have the resources to make these sorts of investments, smaller cities and rural
communities often do not. Congress should authorize a cultural and economic heritage pilot
program that supports small cities, rural communities, and tribal communities to invest in
neighborhood focused cultural economies and public art.
 
Mitigate involuntary displacement and eviction in gentrifying neighborhoods. Many low-income
neighborhoods are experiencing challenges related to real estate market appreciation or
gentrification. In fast changing market conditions, it is critical that low-income households
understand not only their potential vulnerability but also the potential benefits including, for
example, appreciating home value for homeowners or improved local schools. Congress should
appropriate additional resources in the US HUD Housing Counseling Program to be specifically
targeted for neighborhood-focused housing counseling and financial coaching in low-income
neighborhoods at risk of gentrification.
 
Support residents of LMI neighborhoods and communities of color to pursue environmental
justice. Neighborhoods that are predominately low-income or home to people of color are
significantly more likely to be impacted by environmental contamination. In many cases, a
concentration of hazardous pollutants in the water, soil and/or air is the result of a corporate or
governmental entity failing to take full responsibility for the adverse environmental impacts
that result from their activities. The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Brownfield
Program is designed to identify and remediate place-based environmental pollutant after the
contamination has already happened. While it is important to invest in remediation, it is critical
to protect and expand resources that provide technical support to neighborhood residents
when they have a local environmental concern and to strengthen the speed and responsiveness
to reports of potentially polluting activities. Further, resources should be made available to
educate small businesses on how to fully comply with environmental regulations and to
incentivize their compliance.
 







20A Latino Perspective on US Domestic Economic Policy


Improve living conditions in colonias. Colonias are unincorporated communities in Texas, New
Mexico, Arizona and California that lack adequate water, sewer, or decent housing, or a
combination of all three. A 2015 study by the Federal Reserve Bank of Dallas reported that
more than 500,000 people lived in close to 2,300 colonias in the State of Texas alone. US HUD
and the border states have recognized the extraordinary needs in colonia communities and
developed infrastructure investment and housing programs that take into account the unique
challenges faced by these unincorporated communities. While many of these programs have
proven to be effective, the comparatively small scale of investment means that there has been
limited progress in improving some of the worst living condition in the United States. Congress
should renew its focus on improving colonia communities and dramatically increase investment
in proven programs that address the infrastructure and community development needs in
colonias.


 
Expand public transportation systems. Investing in the expansion of local and regional public
transit systems, including subways, rapid bus systems, light rail as well as pedestrian and
cycling infrastructure, is critical for connecting workers to jobs and for managing the combined
cost of housing and transportation which is central to our nation’s affordable housing crisis.
When public transportation becomes a competitive or even preferred option as compared to
cars, these investments will be an important contribution to reducing pollutants that drive
climate change. Congress should significantly increase investment in local and regional public
transportation systems, including in rural communities. This should include increasing federal
investments in public transportation in rural areas and where there are high concentrations of
transit dependency. Congress should conduct oversight to ensure that public transit projects
are not implemented in a manner that harms low-income and minority communities.
 
Create jobs by repairing failing transportation infrastructure. In its latest report card on
America’s infrastructure, the American Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE) graded our nation’s
infrastructure a D+ using criteria that includes capacity, public safety, condition, maintenance,
and resiliency. Investments in our nation’s highways, bridges, tunnels, transit systems, and
alternative transportation options will create jobs and reinvigorate our economy. Given the
over-representation of Latinos in the construction trades, infrastructure and housing
investments are likely to produce a disproportionate value for Latinos.


Enforce Fair Housing RightsInvest in Public Transportation Infrastructure


Policy Perspectives & Recommendations (continued)


Strengthen oversight of “too big to fail” financial institutions. The Dodd Frank Law required the
Federal Reserve to undertake a range of oversight efforts specifically for very large financial
institutions that were determined to be Systemically Important Financial Institutions (SIFIs).
The Federal Reserve should maintain strong oversight of SIFIs including by ensuring strong
capital buffers for these “too big to fail” financial institutions and thorough annual
Comprehensive Capital Analysis and Reviews (CCAR).


Promote a Stable, Fair & Efficient Financial Services Marketplace


Mitigate Systemic Risk in the Financial Services Market







21A Latino Perspective on US Domestic Economic Policy


Policy Perspectives & Recommendations (continued)


Improve diversity in governance in the financial policy making institutions. For all the
dynamism and strength of the US economy, it has come to be characterized most
fundamentally by enormous disparities in wealth, income and opportunity that strongly
correlate to race, ethnicity and geography. East Los Angeles; West Baltimore; Starr County,
Texas; and Mercer County, West Virginia share similar concerning adverse economic conditions,
each for distinct reasons and each with distinct opportunities to improve. Failing to address
significant disparities in income and net worth between major segments of our population, and
particularly in segments that are driving our nation’s demographic growth, will result in a less
globally competitive US economy. This is a significant and long-term economic risk for the
United States. It is critical to have individuals in governance level positions at the Federal
Reserve and other federal financial policy making institutions who reflect the racial and ethnic
diversity of our nation and who deeply understand how working-class people experience the
US economy. A community development professional should be named to the Board of
Governors of the Federal Reserve and the Federal Reserve should dramatically increase the
number of Hispanics and Asian Pacific-Americans on the Boards of Directors of regional Federal
Reserve Banks.


Reject the approach to CRA modernization put forward by the Comptroller of the Currency. The
CRA is a critical tool for achieving broader financial inclusion. The law was a landmark
response to discriminatory practices that targeted communities of color. Unfortunately, these
practices continue today. The CRA requires regulated banks to responsibly meet credit needs of
low- and moderate-income people in the communities they serve, and it is a fundamental pillar
of the multi-billion-dollar community development sector. In the wake of a tax reform that
produced windfall profits for banks and their high wealth investors, the CRA is needed more
than ever.
 
The Office of the Comptroller of the Currency released an Advanced Notice of Proposed
Rulemaking (ANPR) in the fall of 2018 to solicit comments on CRA modernization. There were
widespread and well-documented concerns regarding the OCC’s approach from consumer
protection advocates, community development practitioners, large portions of the banking
industry, and Members of Congress. An overwhelming majority of respondents to the ANPR,
including many from the banking industry, expressed two key concerns: first, that CRA
modernization should focus on the credit needs of LMI communities; and second, that creating
a single metric or “one ratio” approach to ratings was flawed. The Notice of Proposed
Rulemaking (NPR) published by the OCC in December 2019 proposes an approach that is
contrary to both key points and, if enacted, will substantially lower the bar for bank compliance
with the CRA and will effectively gut the CRA. It will be particularly harmful to rural
communities and will reduce investment in the community development finance sector. 
 
Based on more than a decade of work by Federal Reserve Governors and staff and wide ranging
public input around the concept of CRA reform, Fed Governor Lael Brainard made a speech in
January 2020 that details a way forward on CRA that reflects a balance of input from industry
and community-serving organizations. Regulators should undertake a reboot of the CRA
modernization process based on the Federal Reserve’s approach. 
 
Expand the CRA to cover large mortgage companies. A 2019 article from an FDIC quarterly
publication entitled, “Trends in Mortgage Origination and Serving: Non-banks in the Post Crisis 
 


Strengthen the Community Reinvestment Act (CRA)







22A Latino Perspective on US Domestic Economic Policy


Policy Perspectives & Recommendations (continued)


Period” indicates that mortgage companies now provide most of the mortgages in the United
States. The Community Reinvestment Act should be expanded by Congress cover the largest
nonbank mortgage companies.


Return the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (CFPB) to its mission. The CFPB’s mission is
to ensure the consumer financial markets are safe and accessible and to empower consumers
to make informed financial decisions. The new administration must restore the structures and
resources the CFPB needs to fight discrimination in lending and protect consumers and ensure
the ongoing independence of the agency. 
 
Fully implement the CFPB’s 2017 Payday Rule as originally issued. In 2017, the CFPB issued a
final rule to regulate payday and other small dollar lending, including requiring lenders to
consider a borrower’s ability to repay before extending credit. The Bureau spent over five years
engaging in extensive information gathering, public input, and analysis before finalizing the
rule to address the unfair and abusive practice by payday and vehicle title lenders. In June
2019, the Director of the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau suspended critical provisions of
the 2017 rule. This occurred after millions of dollars in contributions were made to the Trump
campaign and associated SuperPACs from the payday industry.
 
Expand the authority of the CFPB to supervise credit scoring agencies. The CFPB should have
the authority to ensure our nation’s credit scoring models do not create inaccurate or false
determinations of a consumer’s credit-worthiness and require that it study the use of
alternative data in credit scoring models including its impact on those with little or no
traditional credit history and racial and ethnic minorities. 
 
Expand the capacity of the CFPB to supervise financial activity in multiple languages. While the
CFPB issued a Language Access Plan in 2017 to better provide resources to persons with limited
proficiency in English, the agency should take a critical next step and develop a plan and hire
sufficient multilingual staff to be able to effectively enforce consumer protection laws with
respect to financial activities and transactions that take place in Spanish and other languages. 
 
The CFPB should expand data collection on lending in the United States. Section 1071 of the
Dodd Frank Law requires the CFPB to collect data on lending to small, women-owned and
minority-owned businesses and make it publicly available. This provision was designed by
Congress to facilitate enforcement of fair lending laws to curb discrimination, and to identify
and remedy “credit deserts” where businesses are unable to obtain the credit they need to grow
and serve their communities. Congress mandated that the CFPB issue rules to implement this
data collection, yet, after ten years, the CFPB has failed to comply with its obligation. Further,
the CFPB has taken steps to undermine the long-established mortgage data collection process
required by the Home Mortgage Disclosure Act (HMDA). The CFPB should ensure robust data
collection efforts with respect to both HMDA and Section 1071.
 
Ensure strong consumer protections in the fast-developing financial technology (FinTech)
sector. As financial services technology continues to advance quickly, including marketplace
lending for consumers and small businesses as well as the entry of tech firms into the banking
and currency markets, financial regulations must be adapted to ensure innovators are held to a
high bar of consumer protection. 
 


Ensure Strong Consumer Financial Protections and Limit Predatory Lending







23A Latino Perspective on US Domestic Economic Policy


Policy Perspectives & Recommendations (continued)


Catalyze Small Business Growth


Fully fund the SBA. SBA’s mission, under The Small Business Act, is to maintain and strengthen
the nation’s economy by supporting the vitality of small businesses. SBA programs such as the
Microloan Program, the Women’s Business Development Center Program, and the Program for
Investment in Micro-Entrepreneurs (PRIME) fill an accessibility gap for traditionally underserved
entrepreneurs, including Latinos. However, the agency faces budget volatility and shortfalls
resulting in a lack of stability and fewer resources to help entrepreneurs. The SBA’s budget
must not fall below what was enacted for FY2018 funding and must be set at a robust level to
consider the natural growth of its programs and the role they play in enabling Latino
entrepreneurs to boost the economy. 
 


Develop a strategic plan for improving access to SBA lending and guarantee programs for
minority, women, and limited English proficient entrepreneurs. The SBA should develop a
strategic plan for ensuring that its guarantee and direct lending programs equitably serve
minority, women, and limited English proficient entrepreneurs. The agency should report to
Congress semi-annually on its progress and should be held to account for failing to meet the
capital needs of populations that make up the future of the US small business sector. 
 


Make Access to Capital for Minority, Women and Limited English Proficient
Entrepreneurs a Top Priority for the Small Business Administration (SBA)


Preserve and protect funding for the Community Development Financial Institutions (CDFI)
program. CDFIs are community-based, financial institutions that provide financial products and
services to those that are traditionally underserved by mainstream financial institutions. CDFIs
emerged to address the disparities in capital allocation by traditional lenders.
 
Make the New Markets Tax Credit (NMTC) Program permanent. Increase investment and spur
economic growth in LMI communities by making the New Markets Tax Credit (NMTC)
permanent. The NMTC program provides a tax incentive to private investors to make Qualified
Equity Investments to community development entities, whose economic development projects
create jobs and improve the lives of people living in LMI communities.


Invest in Community Development Financial Institutions (CDFIs)


Support Minority Owned Depository Institutions (MDIs). MDIs promote a more equitable
economy because they are more likely to serve underbanked and LMI communities than their
traditional bank counterparts. According to the FDIC report entitled 2019 Minority Depository
Institutions: Structure, Performance, and Social Impact, MDIs serve a higher share of minority
home mortgage borrowers compared with non-MDI metro-area community banks and MDIs
make a greater share of their loans to small business borrowers located in LMI census tracts
than non-MDI banks. The number of MDIs have decreased significantly, further limiting access
to financial services in minority communities. Prudential regulators should more actively
strengthen MDIs consistent with Section 308 of the Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery,
and Enforcement Act of 1989.


Support Minority Depository Institutions







Align workforce development policy with the changing American workplace. While much has
been done to modernize the nation’s workforce development investment system, the American
workplace continues to evolve rapidly. Worker classification has become increasingly
challenging and workers are challenged to bring increasingly technical and entrepreneurial
skill sets to their jobs. Just as businesses are developing new approaches to hiring and internal
training, US Department of Labor workforce investment programs and labor classifications need
continued modernization, particularly regarding the needs and opportunities faced by 1099
workers. 
 
Increase the Federal Minimum Wage. The federal minimum wage has been at $7.25 since 2009.
A full-time worker at minimum wage cannot live with dignity in today’s economy without
public assistance. A July 2019 study by the Congressional Budget Office found that a $15
federal minimum wage would increase pay for as many as 27 million workers. Investing in our
nation’s workers is investing in our nation’s economy, which relies heavily on consumer
spending. Congress should adopt a timeline to gradually increase the federal minimum wage
and tie the minimum wage to an appropriate cost of living escalator. 
 
Close the pay gap for Latinas. Latinas earn dramatically less than their White and male
counterparts in the workforce. While increasing the minimum wage would be an important step
toward closing the pay gap for Latinas in low wage jobs, far more needs to be done to address
this pressing concern that affects Latinas across the economic spectrum. Equal pay protections
for Latinas must be vigorously enforced, including greater transparency and compliance
measures and increased penalties for violations of equal pay protections. The US Equal
Employment Opportunity Commission must receive increased training and resources to better
identify and investigate wage discrimination. 
 
Increase access to paid sick leave.  According to a March 2020 Pew Research Center analysis of
the US BLS 2019 National Compensation Survey, while 73% of private sector workers have
access to paid sick leave, only 64% of retail workers and 58% of construction workers have
access to paid sick leave.  A 2010 report by the Joint Economic Committee of Congress found
that 27% of food service workers and childcare workers had access to paid sick leave.  Congress
should pass legislation to establish a tax penalty for businesses that fail to provide paid sick
leave for all employees, except for the smallest businesses, and provide financial incentives to
make it realistic for the smallest businesses to offer paid sick leave.
 


24A Latino Perspective on US Domestic Economic Policy


Policy Perspectives & Recommendations (continued)


Prepare Workers to Succeed


Reauthorize and expand the State Small Business Credit Initiative (SSBCI). The SSBCI was
administered by the Department of Treasury and strengthened state programs that support
financing of small business. The SSBCI expired in 2017.
 
Develop a federal strategic plan to open access to credit and business opportunities for woman
and minority small business owners. Ensure interagency coordination among SBA, US Treasury
CDFI, US Commerce Minority Business Development Agency (MBDA) and the US HUD offices
throughout the federal government. 


Strengthen and Coordinate Small Business Resources Outside of the SBA 







Immediately and urgently implement disaster recovery programs. There have been significant
delays in implementing disaster recovery programs after Hurricane Maria. The US HUD
Inspector General’s Office opened an investigation into whether the White House interfered to
slow the flow of disaster recovery funding to Puerto Rico. Disaster recovery programs must be
urgently implemented consistent with documented and expressed community needs. To be
most effective and accountable, this requires a significant investment in providing technical
assistance to the Commonwealth government as well as municipal governments that are
charged with critical roles in the implementation.
 
Similar to how US HUD managed the Neighborhood Stabilization Program Round II, US HUD
and the Commonwealth government should jointly explore whether a well-structured
consortium of non-profit housing and economic development entities, including a combination
of those on the island and from the mainland, could play a role in the rapid and scaled
deployment of disaster recovery funding, as happened when US HUD sought to rapidly deploy
billions of dollars in response to the foreclosure crisis. 
 
Establish a 10-year Marshall Plan-like approach to revitalizing the Puerto Rican economy, with
a focus on climate resilience. Disaster recovery funding is insufficient for strengthening the
Puerto Rican economy for the long term. Tax policies, enshrined in both federal and
Commonwealth law, incentivized private financial institutions to work with local utilities and
municipalities to engineer what became the Puerto Rican debt crisis. These tax policies should
be normalized. Infrastructure in Puerto Rico is badly outdated and there is the opportunity to
dramatically “leap” forward to modern technology and approaches for delivering water, energy,
wastewater, and transportation services. These investments should not be made with an over
reliance on debt financing; rather the US government should invest in infrastructure that allows
for a vibrant Puerto Rican economy. It is also crucial to eliminate all barriers to the flow of
international trade through Puerto Rican ports, which unnecessarily limit import and export
activity. Technical support must be provided to local governments in Puerto Rico to support
their capacity to manage a rapid transition to a stronger and more resilient economy in a
manner that meets the needs and opportunities of the Puerto Rican people.
 


25A Latino Perspective on US Domestic Economic Policy


Policy Perspectives & Recommendations (continued)


Invest in Puerto Rico


Eliminate racially biased policing and enact criminal justice reform to better support our
workforce. Our nation’s economic potential is limited by the mass incarceration of a significant
segment of our nation’s potential workforce - especially young men of color. While there have
been significant efforts to support the re-entry of formerly incarcerated people into the
workforce, much more needs to be done to avoid unnecessary incarceration in the first place.
Racially biased policing and sentencing are key reasons why people of color are
disproportionately incarcerated. Racial, religious and other discriminatory profiling by law
enforcement is abusive and unconstitutional. There must be increased training for law
enforcement on best practices for eliminating racial profiling as well as accountability for
departments and individuals that engage in a pattern of racial profiling. Sentencing guidelines
and racially biased approaches to prosecution that result in the disproportionate incarceration
of people of color must be changed.







Preserve rural affordable housing. The US Department of Agriculture’s (USDA) Rural Housing
Programs improve the quality of life for low- and moderate-income people in rural America,
including many seniors. These programs include low-cost loans, rental assistance, grants, and
other support to improve housing conditions. The Section 502 Direct Loan Program has helped
more than 2 million low-income rural familes to afford a home and build their wealth. The
program provides essential funding to meet needs that the private market simply does not and
it should be preserved. USDA’s Section 515 Rural Rental Housing Program and the Farm Labor
Housing Program support the development of rental housing to low- and moderate-income
families in rural America. USDA should preserve and modernize these programs to address the
evolving needs of rural communities, including preventing displacement and reducing long
work commute times as a result of the lack of decent affordable housing. 
 
Address the digital divide in rural communities. The Federal Reserve Banks of Dallas and
Kansas City have published important research on the impacts of inadequate access to reliable
high-speed broadband in rural communities. Ongoing federal investment is needed to help
close the digital divide because of the high cost to build broadband infrastructures in rural
areas and the fewer subscribers to cover those costs. 
 
Create economic and educational opportunities for diverse populations in rural communities.
Latinos and immigrants are stabilizing the populations of many rural communities and make up
increasingly large portions of the school age populations in many rural school systems. Federal
economic development and educational investments in rural communities must consider the
evolving cultural and linguistic realities of rural America.    
 


Published by NALCAB - the National Association for Latino Community Asset Builders


Policy Perspectives & Recommendations (continued)


Strengthen Rural America



https://nalcab.org/

https://nalcab.org/






 


2020 Public Policy Platform: Covid-19 and the Immigrant Population 
of Florida  
 


1  Hispanic Unity of Florida, 2020 Policy Platform  
 


 


Covid-19 has plunged the country into an unprecedented health crisis that along with it has brought 
hardships to every facet of American life. Unfortunately, the fallout of this health crisis has fallen on 
the shoulders of working-class families, which includes millions of immigrant families in Florida. 


Many of the public policy agendas that existed in January 2020 have been radically changed as 
governments and organizations have pivoted due to the pandemic. Although the responses to 
community needs were forced to change overnight, the fundamentals remain the same. Covid-19 has 
brought out to the light many of the challanges faced by immigrant families as most of these issues are 
not contained to one social stratum or to a single legal status but are issues, that if addressed correctly, 
could help lift many members of our society. 


Covid-19 has perhaps offered an opportunity to once again address these issues with our policy makers 
in a new context. The following are is HUF’s public policy agenda in the coming months, taking into 
consideration the new reality for many immigrant families.  


The policies are broken down into four focus areas: Health, Economic Development, Education, and 
Immigration. These are divided into state and federal initiatives.  


   


 


Hispanic Unity of Florida and its Board of Directors are guided in their governance, Mission, 
and policy, as well as, thought, word and action by the belief that racism has no place in our 
society and our community. Hatred and violence against a whole people because of what you 
look like, where you were born, whom you love, where you worship and how you identify, have 
no place in our society.  


 


 


 







 


2020 Public Policy Platform: Covid-19 and the Immigrant Population 
of Florida  
 


2  Hispanic Unity of Florida, 2020 Policy Platform  
 


STATE Policy Platform  
 
Health 
 
• Close the Medicaid coverage gap. Medicaid expansion in Florida would provide coverage for 850,000 


Floridians. Medicaid expansion is a quintessential issue that, if a compromise were to be found, would 
prove beneficial not just for immigrant families, but for all Floridians. This is an issue that has been a 
goal at several legislative sessions with no result. At the next legislative session, a new push with Covid-
19 as a backdrop, will occur. This, along with new members in the legislature, could lead to some gains 
when it comes to healthcare.  
 
Policy recommendations:  


o Close the Medicaid coverage gap. Florida should expand Medicaid, as per the Affordable Care 
Act, to low-income adults under 138% of the Federal Poverty Line and receive a 90% federal 
match (96.2 % match under FFCRA) for services provided to newly eligible adults. 
 A May 2020 study by the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation projects that the number of 


uninsured non-elderly Floridians could rise an additional 403,000 to 759,000.i  
o Support making the extension of flexibilities to Medicaid implemented during the state of 


emergency: 
 No Medicaid recipient will lose Medicaid eligibility during the state of emergency. 
 Beginning with applications received in February 2020, the timeframe for individuals to 


submit any necessary paperwork is now 120 days from the date the application was 
received. If the Medicaid application is approved, the individual’s Medicaid eligibility 
effective date will still be the first day of the month that the initial application was 
received. 


Rule changes: 
o Support the elimination of the five-year waiting period for pregnant women to access Medicaid 


via the Immigrant Children’s Health Improvement Act (ICHIA) Option would narrow additional 
gaps in coverage.  


o Support the extension of the reasonable opportunity period beyond 90 days for citizenship 
status verification. 


o Support to have Florida define Emergency Medicaid Assistance (EMA) to include any individuals 
receiving treatment for symptoms related to COVID-19. 


o Support to have Florida’s Federally Qualified Health Centers, among the only healthcare sources 
that do not limit benefits based on immigration status, to eliminate all co-pays for individuals 
under 100% FPL seeking diagnosis or treatment for COVID-19-related conditions. 







 


2020 Public Policy Platform: Covid-19 and the Immigrant Population 
of Florida  
 


3  Hispanic Unity of Florida, 2020 Policy Platform  
 


 
 


• Make permanent the temporary protections to SNAP, TANF. Currently, thanks to executive orders in 
Florida, families under the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) are granted the 
maximum monthly allotment per household size, work requirements have been waived temporarily, 
and an automatic six-month recertification extension for individuals and families scheduled to recertify 
in April, May or June has been implemented.  


 
Policy recommendations:  


o Support the elimination of work requirements for SNAP and Temporary Assistance for Needy 
Families (TANF).  


o Support continued extensions of the emergency allotments month by month as prescribed by 
the law, until Florida’s unemployment rate reaches the pre-pandemic rate.  


o Support the extention of recertification beyond June.  
 


• Expansion of telehealth services and interpretation services.  Support the expansion of telehealth 
services and interpretation services for these services.  


 
• Narrow the gap in WIC participation. More than 400,000 Florida households eligible for the Special 


Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and Children (WIC) program are not enrolledii. 
WIC is not part of the public charge test.    


 
Recommendation: 


o Support and encourage Florida to continue to work with WIC agencies and community-based 
organizations to ensure that remaining eligible Floridians can apply for WIC. 


 
• Reimburse community nonprofits and places of worship for benefit enrollment. Closure of DCF offices 


across the state has shifted the state benefit workload to local nonprofits and places of worship and 
placed financial stress on them.  
 
Policy recommendations: 


o Establishing a certified community partners program that reimburses nonprofits and places of 
worship for staff time spent enrolling Floridians in DCF and Department of Economic 
Opportunity (DEO) benefit programs. 


 







 


2020 Public Policy Platform: Covid-19 and the Immigrant Population 
of Florida  
 


4  Hispanic Unity of Florida, 2020 Policy Platform  
 


• Implement proactive testing in hard-hit Florida communities. Implement a proactive, community-
based testing program—in partnership with trusted organizations—that tests all residents for COVID-19 
(including antibodies) in “hot spot” ZIP Codes. This is necessary to accurately count the number of cases 
and understand its impact on immigrant families and the public at large. In addition to this, the use 
newer generations of tests can give faster results. Providing participants with test results within 48 
hours will allow them to adjust their daily routine and curb the spread of the virus to other family 
members and/or co-workers.  


 
• Continue to expand access to online groceries. Currently, Florida allows SNAP recipients to use an EBT 


card to do online shopping at Walmart and Amazon.  
 


Rule change: 
o Support the expansion to other Florida grocers that have the infrastructure for online shopping 


and that accept EBT as payment. Publix, ALDI, Sam’s Club, and Sedano’s are examples of these 
potential grocers.  


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Economic Development  
 
• Expand the statewide moratorium on evictions and foreclosures to the end of 2020. Currently, the 


statewide moratorium, per executive order 20-137 issued on June 1, 2020, expires on July 1, 2020.  







 


2020 Public Policy Platform: Covid-19 and the Immigrant Population 
of Florida  
 


5  Hispanic Unity of Florida, 2020 Policy Platform  
 


Ensuring that homeowners and renters can safely stay in their homes is an important element of the 
public health response to the coronavirus crisis. The expanded moratorium provides homeowners with 
more time to request mortgage relief and renters time to contact property owners and make the 
necessary arrangements that would allow them to remain in place during the pandemic.  


  
Policy recommendations:  


o Support having the Florida legislature enact a moratorium on foreclosures and evictions 
through the end of 2020.  


o The moratorium should apply to all mortgages and rental housing units, not just to federally 
backed or subsidized housing units. 
 


• Direct CDBG-CV funds to Floridians who need it most. The Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic 
Security Act (CARES Act) makes supplemental Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding 
available to prevent, prepare for, and respond to coronavirus (CDBG-CV grants).  


 
Recommendations:  


o Advocate to have the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity, to the extent possible 
under the law, guide county and city jurisdictions to use CDBG-CV funds to provide direct rental 
assistance to tenants who have lost their jobs and have notified their landlords of their inability 
to make payments. 


o Support the use of CDBG-CV grants could be deployed to fund nonprofit community-based 
service providers to meet the expected increase in demand for foreclosure and eviction 
prevention services.  


 
• Provide mortgage and rental assistance. Floridians need the help of mortgage and rental assistance to 


allow them to stay in their homes.  
o A study by ATTOM Data Solutions, a property database and data provider, found that 10 


housing markets in Florida are at risk for foreclosures due to the impact of coronavirus, the 
second highest in the country. Broward County is highlighted as having a population of at least 
500,000 and is on the list of top 50 counties at risk.iii    


 
Rule changes:  
o Support having the state use the fully funded Sadowski Affordable Housing Trust Fund to make 


this assistance available.  
o Support the activation of disaster strategies, provided by the declaration of emergency, within 


the local State Housing Initiatives Partnership (SHIP) plans in all 67 counties.  
 







 


2020 Public Policy Platform: Covid-19 and the Immigrant Population 
of Florida  
 


6  Hispanic Unity of Florida, 2020 Policy Platform  
 


• Fix Florida’s broken unemployment system. The problems associated with Florida’s unemployment 
system extend beyond a malfunctioning website and have been persistent for nearly a decade.  


 
Rule changes: 
o Support the suspention of requirements such as work search, work registration, and biweekly 


reporting. Additionally, support the suspension of the “waiting week” before benefits begin to 
be paid out. These suspensions should remain in place until Florida’s unemployment rate 
returns to the February 2020 level of 2.8%.  


o Support the establishment of state unemployment benefits for the self-employed and gig 
workers.  


o Support the permanent removal of math, reading, and research skills testing from the 
unemployment application process. 


 
• Establish a state earned sick time law for all workers. Florida has one of the highest populations 


without access to paid sick time, which disproportionally affects hospitality and tourism workers.  
 


Policy recommendation: 
o Support an earned sick time law that would require all public and private employers to allow all 


workers, including gig employees, to accrue paid time off to seek medical care or deal with a 
mental or physical illness to prevent the spread of highly contagious viruses, such as COVID-19, 
to fellow employees and customers.  
 Some local Florida municipalities already offer this to full-time government employees 


and is required of federal contractors.  
 
• Create a state-based refundable Earned Income Tax Credit (EITC). In tax year 2015, approximately two 


million tax filers in Florida received $5.2 billion worth of tax credits through the EITC. Across the 
country, other states and the District of Columbia have already created or enacted a state based EITC 
program, including Washington, a state without an income tax like Florida. 


 
 
 
Florida’s tax system is upside down, meaning that those with the lowest incomes are asked to pay the 
highest share of their income on state and local taxes. Targeted tax rebates and credits to those with 
the lowest income can help alleviate this. 


 







 


2020 Public Policy Platform: Covid-19 and the Immigrant Population 
of Florida  
 


7  Hispanic Unity of Florida, 2020 Policy Platform  
 


State EITCs are better targeted to people with low income than blanket tax exemptions, so they help to 
reduce the disproportionate impact of sales and excise taxes. According to data from the Institute on 
Taxation and Economic Policy, a state EITC at 30 percent of the federal credit would reduce the share of 
income that Floridians in the lowest income quintile pay towards taxes from 12.7 percent to 9.3 
percent, a 26 percent decrease.iv 


 
Policy recommendations: 


o Support the implementation of a state-based tax credit based on the federal EITC.  
 Legislation was proposed in the Legislature in 2020. A 2019 poll showed 65% of 


Floridians support an EITC.v  
 
• Institute a 36% cap on interest rates for consumer loans. This will prevent future bankruptcies and 


overdraft fees that trap people in a cycle of debt, keeping them in a perpetual state of poverty and 
widening the income gap.  
 
 


• Support small businesses by partnering with Community Development Financial Institutions (CDFIs). 
More than 37,000 businesses were denied credit by Florida’s Small Business Emergency Bridge Loan 
Program in April 2020. CDFIs are trusted by small businesses in underserved communities and can help 
mitigate the current economic challenges.  


 
Recommendation: 


o Support the strengthening of state efforts to support small businesses, including through 
support of CDFIs, to help build the capacity of these community-based lenders to ensure that 
small businesses and nonprofit organizations can maintain payroll and operations.  


 
 
 
 
 
Education 
 
• Prioritize early childhood education. The CARES Act directly supports early childhood education, 


including $3.5 billion for the Child Care and Development Block Grant program and $750 million for 
Head Start. These grants provide immediate assistance to childcare providers to prevent them from 







 


2020 Public Policy Platform: Covid-19 and the Immigrant Population 
of Florida  
 


8  Hispanic Unity of Florida, 2020 Policy Platform  
 


going out of business and to support childcare services for families, including for essential workers 
playing critical roles during this crisis.  


 
Recommendation: 


o Support and advise the state and local governments to make sure that these funds are allocated 
where they are needed most.  
 


• Provide support for Florida’s English learners (ELs). Florida has the third largest EL population in the 
nation with more than 300,000 ELs throughout the state. Many EL children are experiencing high levels 
of stress—parents have lost their jobs, or they are afraid that their parents who are providing services  
 
will become infected, or they have family members who are sick or have died—all factors that are 
especially damaging for students. 
 
Recommendations: 


o Support funding for online learning support for Els and educate where the need is: 
 Devices, connectivity, and digital programs.  
 Trainings for EL teachers, who have reported fewer hours of professional development 


with digital learning resources than mainstream teachers.  
o Support mental health initiatives for ELs, and all students, to mitigate the risks of stress on their 


social-emotional well-being.  
 


• Prevent immigrant children and students from falling even further behind their peers while schools 
grapple with the crises. Schools have closed will likely widen the education and opportunity gap, place 
children at risk without adequate and safe childcare resources. 
 


o Support: 
 Strengthening of early learning programs like Head Start to meet quality childcare needs 


of families. 
 School breakfast and lunch programs.  


 
 


 Expansion of broadband internet access and that the curriculum and tools children, 
including English learners, need to participate in school online are developed and 
funded.  


 







 


2020 Public Policy Platform: Covid-19 and the Immigrant Population 
of Florida  
 


9  Hispanic Unity of Florida, 2020 Policy Platform  
 


• Dedicate aid for college students. State funds need to be dedicated to students who are not included in 
the federal CARES Act.  


 
Rule changes: 


o Support student grants that would allow more students experiencing financial hardship to pay 
for tuition, books, housing, and other basic needs.  


o If a federal or state aid does not materialize, appeal directly to institutions for aid to their 
students.  


 
 
Immigration 
 
State: 
• Find solutions for SB168 (Ban on Sanctuary Cities). There could be opportunity for relief on a local 


level. Local ordinances passed by municipalities could be used to minimize the impact of SB168.  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


FEDERAL Policy Platform 
 
Health 







 


2020 Public Policy Platform: Covid-19 and the Immigrant Population 
of Florida  
 


10  Hispanic Unity of Florida, 2020 Policy Platform  
 


• Advocate Congress temporarily increase the maximum benefit for everyone participating in SNAP. 
o Roughly half a million Floridians were left out of the emergency SNAP supplements (received via 


the Families First Coronavirus Response Act) due to being ineligible because their income is so 
low that they already receive the maximum SNAP benefit.vi 


o Florida Policy Institute recommends a 15 percent increase that amounts to about $25 per 
person per month.   


 
• Support current calls to have the federal Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) extend the 


2020 enrollment period for individuals to sign up for health coverage under the Affordable Care Act 
(ACA). It closed December 15, 2019.vii 


o Support the expansion of future enrollment periods to previous time frames (Feb. 1).    
 
• Support the allocation of funds to support and ensure the availability of language access services in 


health care settings, including community-based organizations, that are responding to COVID-19. 
 







 


2020 Public Policy Platform: Covid-19 and the Immigrant Population 
of Florida  
 


11  Hispanic Unity of Florida, 2020 Policy Platform  
 


Economic Development  
• Strengthen the Community Reinvestment Act (CRA). The CRA is a critical tool for achieving broader 


financial inclusion. The law was a landmark response to discriminatory practices that targeted 
communities of color. The CRA requires regulated banks to responsibly meet credit needs of 
low- and moderate-income people in the communities they serve, and it is a fundamental pillar 
of the multi-billion-dollar community development sector. 


  
Policy recommendation:  


o Support the Federal Reserve’s approach to CRA modernization. The Office of the Comptroller of 
the Currency has released recommendations that would lower the bar for bank compliance with 
the CRA. It will be particularly harmful to rural communities and will reduce investment in the 
community development finance sector. The Federal Reserve is proposing a way forward on 
CRA that reflects a balance of input from industry and community-serving organizations. 


 
 


• Include all residents of the United States in the next stimulus packages, regardless of legal status.  
 
Rule change: 


o Support for inclusion of all low- and moderate-income individuals including those with ITINs, 
mixed-status couples, and mixed-status families with children in receiving cash payments. 


 
• Act to protect small businesses. According to a May 2020 survey conducted by UnidosUS and Color of 


Change, despite two rounds of PPP support, 45% of Black and Latinx small-business owners who are still 
in business reported that they will have to shut their doors by the end of the year, if not sooner.viii The 
next stimulus and relief package must have targeted help to minority-owned businesses and 
nonprofits. Congress must remove the banks out of the equation and offer direct federal financial 
assistance to business owners that will allow equal access to resources.   
 
Policy recommendation:  


o Support the establishment of a temporary small business loan program by Congress designed to 
address shortfalls in revenue by offering interest-free loans to small businesses, which would be 
administered through a network of trusted nonprofit organizations and Community 
Development Financial Institutions. 
 Receiving direct federal assistance to help cover salaries, prevent mass layoffs and 


keep them afloat so they can quickly and safely restart and rehire their workers. 







 


2020 Public Policy Platform: Covid-19 and the Immigrant Population 
of Florida  
 


12  Hispanic Unity of Florida, 2020 Policy Platform  
 


 Suspend foreclosures on individually owned and small business properties until the 
end of the health crisis. 


 Suspend negative credit reporting until the end of the crisis.  
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  







 


2020 Public Policy Platform: Covid-19 and the Immigrant Population 
of Florida  
 


13  Hispanic Unity of Florida, 2020 Policy Platform  
 


Education 
 
• Advocate for additional federal stimulus for education. The federal stimulus is insufficient to address 


the educational needs brought on by the COVID-19 crisis, especially those of Florida’s most vulnerable 
students.  
 
Recommendations:  


o Support State leaders in presenting Florida’s needs to the federal government to secure 
additional rounds of education stimulus.  


o Advocate for supplemental funding for Title III of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act 
in the next relief package to help ensure that Florida’s school districts have the necessary 
resources to address the unique needs of our EL students.  


 
• Relief for student borrowers and holders of federal education loans. 


 
Rule changes:  


o Cancelation of student loan payments. 
o Institute automatic loan forbearance. 
o Cease all involuntary payments on student loans. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


2020 Public Policy Platform: Covid-19 and the Immigrant Population 
of Florida  
 


14  Hispanic Unity of Florida, 2020 Policy Platform  
 


Immigration 
• Advocate to have Congress ensure that the Department of Homeland Security (DHS) and Immigration 


and Customs Enforcement (ICE) follow the announcement the agency made to focus enforcement and 
detention on public safety risks, and that no immigration enforcement actions take place at or near 
health care facilities. 


o Advocate for safe and healthy conditions at detention centers and that non-criminal detainees 
be released during the pandemic.  
 


• Seek the automatic renewal of Employment Authorization Documents. Those with expiring work 
permits, including DACA and TPS holders, should have their work permits automatically renewed by the 
Department of Homeland Security to avoid needlessly facing unemployment and financial uncertainty 
throughout the pandemic.  
 


• Continued support for DACA and TPS recipients. Support the continuation of these programs and ask for 
support in both chambers to ensure that funding is not made available for the arrest, detention, and 
deportation of DACA and TPS recipients.  


 


Sources: 
 
i https://www.rwjf.org/en/library/research/2020/05/how-the-covid-19-recession-could-affect-health-insurance-
coverage.html 
ii https://fns-prod.azureedge.net/sites/default/files/resource-files/WICEligibles2017-Volume2.pdf 
iii https://www.attomdata.com/news/market-trends/attom-data-solutions-special-report/ 
iv https://www.floridapolicy.org/posts/earned-income-tax-credit-crucial-for-working-families 
v https://stateinnovation.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/01/FL-Six-2020-Poll-Memo.pdf 
vi https://www.floridapolicy.org/posts/april-data-show-that-floridas-safety-net-programs-are-crucial-for-floridians-in-need-
of-food-and-medical-care?mc_cid=56ccd2f23d&mc_eid=d7a89b98e5 
vii https://www.thecentersquare.com/florida/feds-ok-florida-covid-19-medicaid-waiver-democrats-call-on-desantis-to-
revisit-aca-expansion/article_91edd81a-693d-11ea-9525-3f8dc3bca1db.html 
viii https://www.unidosus.org/about-us/media/press/releases/051820-UnidosUS-Press-Release-COVID-19-Survey-Black-and-
Latino-Small-Business 



https://www.rwjf.org/en/library/research/2020/05/how-the-covid-19-recession-could-affect-health-insurance-coverage.html

https://www.rwjf.org/en/library/research/2020/05/how-the-covid-19-recession-could-affect-health-insurance-coverage.html

https://fns-prod.azureedge.net/sites/default/files/resource-files/WICEligibles2017-Volume2.pdf

https://www.attomdata.com/news/market-trends/attom-data-solutions-special-report/

https://www.floridapolicy.org/posts/earned-income-tax-credit-crucial-for-working-families

https://stateinnovation.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/01/FL-Six-2020-Poll-Memo.pdf

https://www.floridapolicy.org/posts/april-data-show-that-floridas-safety-net-programs-are-crucial-for-floridians-in-need-of-food-and-medical-care?mc_cid=56ccd2f23d&mc_eid=d7a89b98e5

https://www.floridapolicy.org/posts/april-data-show-that-floridas-safety-net-programs-are-crucial-for-floridians-in-need-of-food-and-medical-care?mc_cid=56ccd2f23d&mc_eid=d7a89b98e5

https://www.thecentersquare.com/florida/feds-ok-florida-covid-19-medicaid-waiver-democrats-call-on-desantis-to-revisit-aca-expansion/article_91edd81a-693d-11ea-9525-3f8dc3bca1db.html

https://www.thecentersquare.com/florida/feds-ok-florida-covid-19-medicaid-waiver-democrats-call-on-desantis-to-revisit-aca-expansion/article_91edd81a-693d-11ea-9525-3f8dc3bca1db.html

https://www.unidosus.org/about-us/media/press/releases/051820-UnidosUS-Press-Release-COVID-19-Survey-Black-and-Latino-Small-Business

https://www.unidosus.org/about-us/media/press/releases/051820-UnidosUS-Press-Release-COVID-19-Survey-Black-and-Latino-Small-Business





